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Vision

‘ ‘ Our vision is to grow our business, while
decoupling our environmental footprint
from our growth and increasing our
positive social impact. , ,

Core Values
Impeccable .b D Wowing our
Integrity Consumers &

We are honest, transparent Customers

and ethicalin our dealings We win the hearts and minds of

at all times.
our consumers and customers.
(]
e 20,
Living an Demonstrating a ‘.. p4
° . ° . .
Enterprise Culture Passion for Winning ‘.

We believe in trust. and We deliver what we promise.

outstanding teamwork. We
value a creative & fun environment.

AN
Bringing out the Making a
Bestin Allof Us Better World *
We are empowered leaders, who We care about and
are inspired by new challenges actively contribute to #4
and have a bias for action. the community in which we live.
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A RENEWED VISION FOR A SUSTAINABLE PAKISTAN

OUR FOURPILLARS



velihoods

(é& Climate

Achieving net zero Empowering people to
emissions for a resilient thrive with sustainable
tomorrow livelihoods

C@ Plastic

Restoring nature’s Ending plastic pollution
balance with regenerative through reduction, circulation,
ecosystems and collaboration
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Directors’ Profile

Sarfaraz Ahmed Rehman

Sarfaraz, a Chartered Accountant by qualification, has contributed
his management expertise to several multinational companies such
as Unilever, SB (GSK), Jardine Matheson/Olayan JV and PepsiCo
during his varied career. Sarfaraz joined Fauji Group in June 2020 and
served as MD & CEO of Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited and Fauji
Fertilizer Company Limited. In 2005, Sarfaraz established Engro Foods
as its CEO. The company grew from a green-field to become the
leading liquid dairy company in Pakistan. Since Oct 2015, he has been
involved in consultancy projects, among others with ICI, IBL, JSPE,
Shan Foods, Al-Shaheer, Soya Supreme, Burque Corp, CCL and ITL.
Sarfaraz was Chairman of the Broadcasters/Advertisers Council
2015-18 (joint body controlling advertising in Pakistan). Further, he
was the Chairman of the 1t Effie Awards in Pakistan, in 2019. He is also
on the Board of Nishat Sutas Dairy Limited, Patient Aid Foundation
and associated with Hisaar Foundation and its work on
water/environmental issues in Pakistan. Additionally, Sarfaraz
speaks at various forums. He has given motivational talks at Lays,
Mondelez, Nutrico, RB, Engro, Octara, ICl, Shell and MAP. In the past
he was associated with Shaukat Khanum Hospital as a Board of
Governor and with WWF as a Director.

AmirRasool Paracha - CEO

Amir Paracha serves as the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
Officer at Unilever Pakistan Limited and General Manager for the Food
business across Pakistan, Turkey, Arabia, and Bangladesh. He is also
the CEO and Director of the Magnum Ice Cream Company Pakistan
Limited. Amir began his journey with Unilever in 2000 as an Assistant
Brand Manager, advancing through various Marketing and Sales
leadership roles throughout his career in Pakistan and globally.

Currently, Amir spearheads the company's "Unilever for Pakistan"
vision, a purpose-driven movement aimed at strengthening Unilever
Pakistan's impact on the lives of Pakistani citizens by providing
equitable opportunities, fostering meaningful livelihoods, and
ensuring living wages. As part of this mission, he is also dedicated to
promoting Unilever Pakistan's climate action by emphasizing a clean
energy transition, minimizing plastic waste, and accelerating the shift
toward a circular economy in Pakistan. Amir has been recognized by
the Government as a “Corona War Hero” and was also conferred
Shan-e-Pakistan Award by the President of Pakistan for Unilever
Pakistan’s COVID relief drive in the country. He has also been honored
by the Institute of Business Administration (IBA) Karachi, with the IBA
Alumni Excellence Awards for his outstanding contribution to
Pakistan's economy, diversity inclusion & professional excellence.

Amir served as the President at the Overseas Investors Chamber of
Commerce & Industry (OICCI) & member FPCCI committed to
collaborating with the broader industry and ecosystem. He is on the
boards of Shell Pakistan Limited, Karachi Vocational Training Centre,
Habib University Foundation, SBS-IBA Advisory Board, National
Management Foundation (LUMS). He also led the Centre of Excellence
for Responsible Business (CERB) under the Pakistan Business Council
and is a Male Champion of Change under Australia (MCC)'s Pakistan
Coalition. He is also serving as Trustee at the Duke of Edinburgh's
Award Pakistan, Resource Development committee member of Indus
Hospital, an ambassador of Akhuwat Foundation and on the UNICEF
Pakistan Advisory Council (UPAC).

He obtained his Master's in Business Administration (MBA) from the
Institute of Business Administration. His professional journey began at
The Royal Dutch Shell Oil Company in 1996. Throughout his career, he
has attended executive programs at prestigious institutions, including
Harvard, INSEAD, and London Business School.

Amir enjoys reading, landscaping, and exploring conceptual
architecture in his personal time.

Muhammad Shahzad

Muhammad Shahzad joined the Board as Director & Chief
Financial Officer of Unilever Pakistan Limited & Unilever Pakistan
Foods Limited in March 2024.

He has over 16 years of experience at Unilever, where he has held
various leadership positions in finance across business
partnering, audit and corporate finance verticals. In his last role
he served as Finance Director for Customer Development, Home
Care, and Nutrition responsible for delivering and developing
long-term strategies for key brands. He is also the ESG Ambition
Lead for Unilever Pakistan, where he engages with key industry
and professional forums to drive impact for corporate Pakistan in
this space. He has done his Masters in Business Administration
from the Institute of Business Administration.

AsimaHaq

Asima is a seasoned business leader with 24 years of FMCG
experience across local and international markets. Currently she is
the Beauty & Wellbeing Arabia Demand Creation and Marketing
Transformation Lead for Pakistan, Turkey, Arabia & Bangladesh for
Unilever and is based out of Dubai.

She has successfully led businesses in and outside Pakistan including
markets like Indonesia, UAE and Arabia. Her extensive career
includes diverse category experience across Beauty & Wellbeing,
Personal Care and Foods & Refreshments where she has successfully
built brands and driven business growth. Asima is a board member
of both Unilever Pakistan Foods Limited and Unilever Pakistan and
has served as Vice Chair and General Secretary at the prestigious
Pakistan Advertiser's Society.

A passionate advocate for girls’ empowerment and education, she
aims to drive inclusion through the reach and influence of the brands
she works on.

Zulfikar Monnoo

Zulfikar joined the Board in 1998 when the Company was formed. He
is also a member of the Audit and Human Resource & Remuneration
Committees of Unilever Pakistan Foods Limited. He is an alumni of
The Wharton School, University of Pennsylvania and Aitchison
College, Lahore. He is a Director of Rafhan Maize Products Limited,
Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited & Kohinoor Textile Mills and is
also the Chief Executive of Pakwest Industries (Pvt.) Ltd., Lahore.

Muhammad Adil Monnoo

Adil joined the Board on May 5, 2002 as a Non-Executive Director.
He is also a Member of the Audit Committee of Unilever Pakistan
Foods Limited. He holds directorship in Rafhan Maize Products
Limited and is in the business of textile trade as the sole
proprietor of HN Enterprises.
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Kamal Monnoo

Kamal joined the Board on December 19, 2006 as a Non-Executive
Director. Having done his schooling from Aitchison College and
graduation from Syracuse University and Yale University, USA, he is
also a Member of the Human Resource & Remuneration Committee
of Unilever Pakistan Foods Limited. He holds directorships in Samira
Fabrics (Pvt) Limited, Samira Industries (Pvt) Limited, Kaarvan
Crafts Foundation, CNM Textile a.s., Bata Pakistan Limited.

Asad Said Jafar

Asad Said Jafar held the position of Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman of the Board of Directors at Signify Pakistan Limited
(formerly Philips Pakistan Limited) from January 2009 up to his
retirement in March 2024. Prior to this, he was Director Supply Chain,
for Philips Lighting ASEAN from 2006 to 2008. Asad has extensive
manufacturing, supply chain, business excellence and general
management experience and has held various leadership roles at
Philips including overseas expatriate postings to Indonesia, Thailand and
Singapore from 2001 to 2008. Asad joined Philips in 1998 as Supply
Chain Manager at Philips Pakistan Limited. He drove the
transformation and revitalization of the Philips business in Pakistan to
become a focused lighting technology company offering a complete
range of conventional and LED lighting solutions including its
connected lighting systems and data-enabled services, design services and
turnkey solutions. He has also steered the transition of the company
from Philips to Signify in Pakistan. Before Philips, Asad worked at ICI
Pakistan Limited from 1988 to 1996, joining them as a Management
Trainee and then moving into various roles in projects, plant
maintenance, design and engineering planning before leaving the
company to pursue an MBA degree.

Asad served as the President of Overseas Investors Chamber of
Commerce and Industry (OICCI) in 2014 and as its Vice President in
2013. He is currently serving on the Board of Directors of Engro
Fertilizers Limited and Unilever Pakistan Foods Limited. Previously he
has served on the Board of Directors of Pakistan Institute of
Corporate Governance (PICG) and Engro Polymer & Chemicals
Limited and has been a member of the Institute of Business
Administration (IBA) Corporate Leaders Advisory Board (ICLAB). He
has also served as a member of International Advisory Board at NED
University of Engineering and Technology. He has participated
regularly in Karachi School of Business & Leadership’'s CEO
mentorship program. Asad holds an Electrical Engineering (BE)
degree from the NED University of Engineering & Technology and a
master’s degree in business administration (MBA) from the Imperial
College Business School, London, UK where he studied as a
Chevening scholar. He is a certified Board Director from PICG and a
member of PICG’s faculty for the flagship Directors Training Program.
He has recently been certified by IFC-PICG as a trainer for ESG &
Sustainability training for Board Directors.

Asad has completed several management development programs
including the ‘Leading a Business’ program at Ashridge Business
School, UK. He attended the ‘Philips Simplicity Brand
1000'programme at the Chicago Graduate School of Business
(London campus) as well as the ‘Business Marketing Strategy’
program at Kellogg School of Management, Northwestern
University, USA. He is often invited to address business professionals
and student audiences at corporate and academic events.

Asad is now working as a management consultant to provide
advisory services to organizations that have an ambitionto transform
to significantly higher levels of performance & maturity, right across
the value chain. This includes providing support for organizational
development, employee assessments & organization structure
improvements, executive coaching, operational capability

assessments, process improvements, performance tracking,
company purpose & business strategy development, ESG strategy
development and overall improvements in corporate governance.

Khalid Mansoor

Khalid Mansoor is a Graduate in Chemical Engineering with
distinction and honors. He has been the Chief Executive Officer of
Hubco, the first and largest Independent Power Producer (IPP) in
Pakistan, since May 20, 2013. The Company generates approximately
10% of the Country’s electricity and is a leading private sector player
in addressing the energy crisis currently being faced by Pakistan.
After becoming the CEO of Hubco in May 2013, he has transformed
the Company and has initiated growth initiatives with Projects worth
over US$ 3.5 billion under execution.

Mr. Mansoor has been Chairman on the Boards of Laraib Energy
Limited, Narowal Energy Limited, Hub Power Services Limited, Hub
Power Holding Limited, and ThalNova Power Thar Private Limited. He
was also a Director of Thar Energy Limited.

Mr. Mansoor had also been the President of the Overseas Investors
Chamber of Commerce & Industry (OICCI) for the term 2017.

He had held the position of CEO of Algeria Oman Fertilizer Company
(AOA) where he was responsible for setting up the world's largest
Ammonia and Urea Fertilizer Complex.

He has also held the positions of CEO of various companies of the
Engro Group and had been a Director on the Boards of Engro Corp
and various Engro subsidiaries including Engro Fertilizers, Engro
Foods, Engro Polymers, Engro Vopak, Engro Powergen, Sind Engro
Coal Mining Company and Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited. He is
also a Director on the Boards of Unilever Pakistan Foods Limited,
Descon Power Solutions and National Bank of Pakistan, Fund
Management Limited. He is also providing consultancy as an
independent Advisor on Jazz Pakistan (a subsidiary of Veon Global)
Advisory Board. Also served as a special assistant to the Prime
Minister of Pakistan on CPEC affairs and Minister of State from August
2021 to April 2022.

Mr. Mansoor has over 40 years of experience in Energy and
Petrochemical Sectors in leading roles for mega size projects
development, execution, management and operations.

Ali Tariq
Ali joined the Board as a Non-Executive Director in April 2017 and

the Unilever Group in 2003. Currently he is the Chairman and CEO
of Unilever’s business in Sri Lanka, a key emerging market.

Since joining the group 20 years ago, Ali has held Global,
Regional and Country leadership roles in both developed and
emerging markets including South Asia, Far East and Europe. He
was the CFO of the Pakistan Business from 2013 to 2017 and from
2017 until 2023 he served at the headquarters in the UK
partnering the Unilever Executive in strategic transformations
and supply chain management.

Prior to joining Unilever, Ali held business advisory roles with PwC
UK where he also trained as a Chartered Accountant. He is a
fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England &
Wales.



Chairman’s Review Report

BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY OVERVIEW
On behalf of the Board, it is my pleasure to present the Chairman’s Review Report for the year ended 31 December 2024.

Pakistan's economy has demonstrated remarkable stability, building upon stabilization during the year and 2.5% GDP
growth in the fiscal year 2024. The country witnessed sustained momentum, fueled by prudent macroeconomic
management, effective inflation control, and fiscal discipline. Inflation declined sharply to 4.1% (Dec 2024) vs 28.3% (Jan
2024) at start of the year, while robust remittances and surging foreign direct investment bolstered economic resilience,
signaling Pakistan's emergence as stable.

The company successfully navigated a reversal in inflationary trends by implementing strategic price decreases,
sustaining market share and driving growth. Timely interventions in pack price architecture yielded positive results,
demonstrating the company's ability to adapt to changing market dynamics. This achievement was attributed to the
dedication of the seasoned management team, adherence to core business principles, and a robust supply chain
network, which ensured seamless execution of pricing strategies and maintained high service levels.

The company’s turnover declined by 2.5% in 2024, primarily driven by pricing initiatives. Maturing tax credits and price
decreases in lieu of long-term market share sustainability led to a decline in EPS of 28% from Rs. 1,530 (2023) to Rs. 1,095
(2024). The Board played a crucial role in steering the company forward, discharging statutory responsibilities and
prioritizing strategic objectives.

BOARD PERFORMANCE AND EFFECTIVENESS

In accordance with the Code of Corporate Governance and the Companies Act, 2017 the evaluation of the
Board, its committees and individual directors was conducted by PICG (Pakistan Institute of Corporate
Governance) to ensure transparency.

The evaluation reflects an increase in overall strategic performance of the Board every year. The Board was
assisted by sub-committees, i.e. the Audit Committee and the HR&R Committee. These sub-committees held
meetings during the year as per the stipulations of the code of corporate governance.

It's important to recognize the key role played by the Sub-Committees (Audit Committee & Human Resources
and Remuneration Committee) in highlighting areas of improvements and recommending pragmatic solutions
for optimum performance. Going forward we will continue our efforts to adopt and implement best governance
practices for sustained growth for the benefit of all stakeholders.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Pakistan's economic prospects appear promising, driven by positive macroeconomic indicators and a steady
rebound in key sectors. Continuing easement of inflation will help businesses thrive. This anticipated stability
may lead to further reductions in policy rates, reducing borrowing costs and stimulating investment and
economic growth. We remain steadfast in our commitment to delivering exceptional performance, leveraging
our esteemed brands, diversified portfolio, and nuanced understanding of our customers. Simultaneously, we
are resolute in our pursuit of sustainability and social responsibility, actively addressing the most pressing
environmental and social challenges. Our strategic initiatives, including carbon footprint reduction and
diversity, equity, and inclusion promotion, are integral to our vision for a responsible and sustainable future.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

On behalf of the board of directors, | would like to express gratitude to our stakeholders for their continued
support and encouragement. | would also like to appreciate the valuable services rendered by the employees of
the Company. | also acknowledge the commitment and diligence of my fellow directors during 2024 and thank
their leadership for their valuable contributions for the continued growth of the organization.

Mr. Sarfaraz Ahmed Rehman

Chairman of the Board
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Winning with Brands and Innovations

‘ ‘ We have some of the world’'s best known and
most trusted brands, with leadership positions
in many of the fast moving consumer goods
categories in which we compete. Committed to
enhancing the quality of life of the people of
Pakistan, we aim to offer a broad portfolio that
appeals to diverse consumers year onyear. , ,
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Directors’ Report

The directors present Unilever Pakistan Foods Limited’'s (UPFL) Annual Report together with audited financial statements
for the year ended December 31, 2024.

Company’s Principal Activities

The Company manufactures and sells consumer and commercial food products under the brand names of Rafhan, Knorr,
Hellmann's, Energile, and Glaxose-D. The Company effectively managed inflationary trend reversals by strategically reducing
prices, maintaining market share and driving growth. The turnover declined by 2.5% on the back of price reduction efforts, leading
us to clock in sustainable growth in the last quarter, showcasing the company's adaptability in dynamic market conditions. As a
result, the company reduced its gross margin by 433bps to 38.5%, coupled with maturing tax credits resulting in a cumulative EPS
decline from Rs. 1,530 (2023) to Rs. 1,095 (2024).

Operating Results 2024 2023
(Rupees in million)

Sales 33,712 34,587
Gross Profit 12,980 14,809
Profit from Operations 10,177 10,473
Profit before tax 10,142 10,353
Profit after tax 6,975 9,744
EPS-basic (Rs.) 1,094.92 1,529.68

The Company operates within the following verticals and key highlights are as follows:

Knorr Noodles:

» Knorr Noodles has focused on providing the best value proposition for different consumer needs and in line with inflationary
times. From ensuring availability at attractive price points to introducing ‘full meal’ proposition for those consuming noodles
beyond a snack. This was supported with impactful media, on-ground and in-store activations under the ‘Knorr iska magic
hee aur umbrella.

« Key Seasons continue to play a crucial role, such as Knorr Back to School, where we offered mothers a host of tasty and

nutritious recipes, impactful in-store and relevant incentives and providing over 1,000 bags made with recycled billboards
under Knorr Bag of Dreams.

» Knorr Fuzon Noodles, our foray into the highly popular Korean segment, was supported by the "Raise Our Chopsticks"
campaign, featuring compelling products, targeted trials, and strategic in-store visibility.

Sauces:

Ramadan is a highly relevant period for Knorr Sauces, particularly for our modern trade consumers. The focus remains to
offer best taste and value promotions for our consumers to celebrate the festive month with our products.

» Access packs at attractive price points for tomato ketchup and chilli garlic sauce were made available to drive
penetration at the right price and value equation for consumers.

» Hellmann’s Mayonnaise remains a key driver of taste, with its "Thick and Creamy" variant being a favourite among the
nation, and ‘Real Mayo’ for the burger-loving consumers seeking an authentic burger taste at home.

Rafhan:

Rafhan's dessert portfolio plays a key consumer choice for special occasions, particularly around the festive season. The
brand drove shopper engagement through engaging in-store experiences during Ramadan via out of category displays
near Ramadan dominant portfolios and precision based digital assets that were around the big idea of, 'Rafhan ki Meethi
Khushyan'. As a result, we witnessed a surge in engagement rate on our digital assets.
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Food solutions:

Key activities under our food service arm catering to chefs, hotels, restaurants and institutions included:

promoting UL brands and partner restaurants.

"Travel Log" social media campaign, centered around 12 customer reels featuring the popular celebrity Igra Aziz,

"Chef Day" initiative was a collaboration with our key restaurant partners under the "Jeetay ga Chef" engagement

program, focusing on co-creating collaborative recipes and menu options with influencers.

partnerships.

Exports:

Future menu innovations around comfort food, low-waste menu, and future trend-based menus, leveraging influencer

Our exports vertical identified North America as an exceptionally important diaspora market, mainly focusing on Noodles,
Sauces, and the Rafhan range. Participation in Gulf Foods 2024 has given us the opportunity to attract different customers
already managing a leading export portfolio range from across the globe. This has given us the remarkable edge to
appoint four distributors across the states, which has led to the coverage of Knorr Noodles and Sauces in ethnic stores

across the main states of USA.

Dividends

Cumulative interim dividend declared during the year 2024
of Rs 1,277 per share amounts to Rs 8,134 million
(cumulative interim dividend declared during the year 2023
of Rs 251 per share amounted to Rs 1,599 million).

Final Dividend 2024: Rs. 600 per share (2023: Rs.178 per share).
Capital Expenditure & Investments

The Company has invested Rs. 2,047 million during the year in
capacity expansion and efficiency. Cashflow projections are
prepared, reviewed, and monitored on a periodic basis by
your company to devise the most effective strategy and to
optimize returns.

Investment strategies are planned after careful consideration
of risk profile. During the year, the Company has invested 60%
of the funds in money market mutual funds to maximize
return, whereas the remaining funds are placed in short-term
bank deposits.

Evaluation of Company's
Performance

There is a stringent performance management mechanism
in place at the company. The management uses several
indicators based on global best practices from parent
company as well as local leadership to ensure that both
short term delivery and long-term health of the business
remains in good position.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Although the IMF arrangement has eased Pakistan's
foreign exchange liquidity, underlying structural issues
remain. Substantial debt repayments in the coming years
will likely continue to strain the country's foreign exchange
reserves, potentially triggering currency devaluation and
supply chain disruptions due to challenges in importing
essential raw materials.

Manufacturing entities fear that if other sectors, such as
agriculture, retail, wholesale, and real estate, remain
untaxed, they will be forced to shoulder an unfair share of
the tax burden. This could destabilize their finances,
undermine their competitiveness, and slow economic
growth, exacerbating the country's reliance on a narrow
and unsustainable tax base.

Our People

We remain committed to investing in the skill development
and professional growth of our people and providing them
with meaningful work. Respect, dignity and fair treatment is
the foundation of how we do business.

In addition to being the top employer of choice in the
country, we are recognized as a talent powerhouse. As a
result, we have also become the talent pool of choice for
our new regional structure, with Pakistan being
represented well across regional leadership roles. We are
also the most preferred employer across over 100 peer
organizations, as well as an employer of choice because of
our leadership in Diversity, Equity & Inclusion (DE&I).

We believe that building an exciting value proposition
through talent development, work culture and
organisational capability is critical to retain and attract top
talent. We will power this focus by investing further in our
brand power to attract the right talent.

Additionally, our commitment to providing better
livelihoods remains strong. As part of this effort, we are
providing living wages to ensure improved livelihoods of
those directly associated with us.

Diversity, Equity and Inclusion

We have a strong foundation of existing policies of support
such as maternity and paternity leave, child-care,
anti-harassment policy to prevent sexual or other abuse,
provision of female accommodation and travel support,
sabbatical leave, and a mental wellbeing policy.



Along with these policies that ensure an equitable working
that further enhance inclusivity and agility in a diverse
environment, we have introduced three new DE&I policies
workforce:

« Bereavement Leave - Employees may avail paid
bereavement leave in case of the death of close family
member.

- Caregiver's Assistance - Apart from agile working,
employees may avail leave to care for dependents
during unforeseen critical health issues.

» Menstrual Leaves - Female employees may avail
menstrual leaves to break the stigma around menstrual
health.

In 2024, the company secured the Employer of Choice
award for the 17th year in a row. As a testament to our
commitment to DE&I we received an award for Employer of
Choice and Respectful Workplace at the Gender Diversity
Awards jointly organized by the Pakistan Business Council
(PBC) and the International Finance Corporation (IFC).

Sustainability risks and
management strategies

Climate change related risks, adequate waste and natural
resource management, and social challenges can present a
variety of risks to businesses. This is the reason that we
operate with a sound strategy around our environmental
and social considerations to ensure we are equipped to
navigate any challenges in this space, and we also work on
adequate preparedness for any ESG related governance
and disclosures in line with local and global reporting
guidelines.

Unilever's sustainability goals are focused on the areas
where we believe we can have the most impact, both from
the lens of our operations and our influence as an
organisation. The four key pillars of our sustainability
strategy are Climate, Nature, Plastics and Livelihoods,
priorities which are material to our business and the
environment in which we operate.

Environmental Protection

Sustainability is at the core of our manufacturing strategy, and
we are committed to the reduction of emissions in our
operations. Our factory now operates at 97% renewable energy.

Throughout the past year, we undertook various
environmental protection measures to conserve water,
energy, and reduce waste, including:

» Reduction in utilities consumption through an effective
run-strategy.

« Recycling and reuse of water from treatment plants and
cooling towers, with minimised use of treated water via
segregation.

» Reduction in compressed air consumption by monitoring
andcapturing leakages through an effective loss
reduction approach.

» Lowering of energy consumption by installing Variable
Frequency Drives (VFDs).

« Optimisation of steam consumption by reducing line losses
and implementing digital monitoring.

- Offsetting the carbon impact of electricity by purchasing
renewable certificates and increasing output from in-house
solar panels through an improved cleaning regime.

» Replacement of old motors with energy-efficient ones.

» Reusing and recycling of waste materials generated from
sites.

At UPFL, one of our sustainability ambitions is to end plastic
pollution through reduction, circulation and collaboration.
This year, we also achieved a major milestone to collect and
process more plastic than we sell ahead of our target.

These efforts to reduce the carbon footprint and reduce
waste through circularity were achieved through a holistic
approach which ensures that sustainability is integrated
across our operations.

Occupational Safety and Health

At UPFL, safety is our top priority, and we strive for Vision Zero
- a workplace with zero injuries. We remain committed to
imparting a safety mindset through reinforced leadership
messaging, responsible employee behaviour, safety
focused plant designs, facilities, and products. This is in
addition to the implementation of safe procedures and
systems throughout the year.

This year, we focused specifically on improving the site
safety culture through a revamped behaviour-based safety
program that focuses on quality against quantity,
reinvigorated accountability program and safety
motivational drives. We also developed evacuation, and
isolation plans for confined spaces, extended the reach of
Fire Alarm system and ensured compliance of our Fire water
network to NFPA standards.

Moreover, we have introduced ADAS-equipped fleet
management for shuttles and admin pool cars, ensuring
safe travel for staff and employees. Our relentless pursuit of
safety excellence has yielded remarkable results, and we
remain committed to maintaining the highest safety
standards in all our operations.

Employee Contribution & Community
Support (PKR 87 million)

Purpose remains the central driving force for our business
and people. It is the idea of contributing meaningfully to
communities, the environment and the country that keeps
our employees motivated and engaged. In addition to
donation drives, we also provide our employees
opportunities such as mentorship and volunteering
programs to enable the organisation to give back to
marginalised communities.

Our Employee Payroll program allows employees to support
our social partners - The Citizens Foundation; Aga Khan
University Hospital and Akhuwat Foundation. These funds
are channelised to facilitate access to education, livelihoods
and health and wellbeing for underprivileged children and
youth.
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In partnership with a variety of social partners, we participated
in the uplift and wellbeing of communities
through sizeable contributions of our products, including

Knorr noodles and soups, Glaxose-D, Energile, and Rafhan.

Value of investments of employeesin
retirement funds

UPFL contributed Rs. 19.8 million to the staff retirement funds
during the year. The value of investments made by the staff
retirement funds operated by the Company as per their
financial statements as at December 31, 2024 is as follows:

Rs.in million
Provident Fund 226
Gratuity Fund 67
Total - 2024 293
Total - 2023 242
Corporate Governance

The management of UPFL is committed to good corporate
governance and complying with best practices. As required
under the Code of Corporate Governance, the Directors are
pleased to state as follows:

The financial statements prepared by the management of the
Company present fairly the result of its operations, cash flows
and changes in equity.

Proper books of account have been maintained.

Appropriate accounting policies, as applicable in Pakistan,
have been consistently applied in the preparation of the
financial statements and accounting estimates are based on
reasonable and prudent judgement.

International Financial Reporting Standards have been
followed in the preparation of the financial statements and
any departure there from has been adequately disclosed.

The system of internal control is sound in design and has been
effectively implemented and monitored.

There are no significant doubts upon the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern.

There has been no departure from the best practices of
corporate governance, as detailed in the Rule Book of the
Stock Exchange.

Statements regarding the following are annexed or are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

- Number of meetings of Board of Directors and its
committees held and attendance by directors.

- Key financial data for the last six years.
- Pattern of shareholding.

Directors

Category Names

Independent Directors - Mr. Sarfaraz Ahmed Rehman
(Chairman of the Board)
+ Mr. Khalid Mansoor
« Mr. Asad Said Jafar

Executive Directors + Mr. Amir R. Paracha (CEO)
+ Mr. Muhammad Shahzad(CFO)

Non-Executive Directors « Mr. Zulfikar Monnoo
+ Mr.Muhammad Adil Monnoo
» Mr. Kamal Monnoo

« Mr. Ali Tariq
Female Director » Ms. Asima Haq
Audit Committee
Mr. Khalid Mansoor Chairman & Member
Mr. Muhammad Adil Monnoo Member
Mr. Sarfaraz Ahmed Rehman Member
Mr. Zulfikar Monnoo Member
Mr. Asad Said Jafar Member
Ms. Aniga Bawany Secretary & Head of

Internal Audit

Human Resource & Remuneration Committee

Mr. Asad Said Jafar Chairman & Member
Mr. Zulfikar Monnoo Member

Mr. Kamal Monnoo Member

Mr. Amir R. Paracha Member

Mr. Sarfaraz Ahmed Rehman Member

Ms. Kanize Fathema Zuberi Secretary & Head of HR

The election of directors was held at the AGM of 2023. The
term of the present directors will expire on April 19, 2026.

Internal Financial Controls

The directors are aware of their responsibility with respect
to internal financial controls. Through discussions with
management and auditors (both internal and external),
they are of the opinion that adequate controls have been
implemented by the Company.

Board Evaluation

In accordance with the Code of Corporate Governance and
the Companies Act, 2017 the evaluation of the Board, its
committees and individual directors was conducted by
PICG (Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance) to
ensure transparency. The Board is assisted by
sub-committees, i.e. the Audit Committee and the HR&R
Committee, and these sub-committees held meetings
during the year as per the stipulations of the code of
corporate governance. It is also important to highlight the
key role played by the sub-committees (Audit Committee &
Human Resources and Remuneration Committee) in
highlighting areas of improvements and recommending
practical solutions. Going forward we will continue our
efforts to ensure that we comply with best governance
practices on the interest of all stake holders.

Directors Remuneration Policy

Directors Fee is paid in line with Board approval and the
Company has approved a formal policy in this regard in
accordance with the Companies Act, 2017 and the CCG. It is
ensured that no director takes part in deciding their own
remuneration. The fee of the Non-Executive and
Independent Directors for attending the Board and
Committee meetings of the Company is determined by the
Board from time to time. The Board, if deems appropriate,
may engage independent consultant to determine the
appropriate level of remuneration of its directors. The
remuneration shall not compromise nor influence in any
way the independence of the directors.



Auditors Unilever PLC, has a holding of 76.5% of the shares in UPFL,
and is the Company’s ultimate parent company.

The Auditors, KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. Chartered

Accountants, were appointed for the year ended December Subsequent Events

31, 2024. The Board has recommended the appointment of

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. as the Auditors of the Company forthe  No material changes and commitments affecting the

year 2025. financial position of the Company have occurred between
the end of the financial year and the date of this report.

Holding Company
Through its wholly owned subsidiary Conopco Inc., USA,
Reserve Appropriations Share Reserves Total
Capital Capital Revenue Sub Total
Issued, Share Special General Un-appropriated
subscribedand Premium Profit
paid up capital
< (Rupees in thousand) >

Balance as at January 1, 2024 63,699 1,296,499 628 138 14,298,725 15,595,990 15,659,689

Transactions with owners of the Company - Distribution

Final dividend for the year ended
December 31, 2023 @ Rs. 178 per share - - - - (1,133,851) (1,133,851) (1,133,851)

First Interim dividend for the year ended
December 31,2024 @ Rs. 143 per share - - - - (910,903) (910,903) (910,903)

Second Interim dividend for the year ended
December 31, 2024 @ Rs. 623 per share - - - - (3,968,479) (3,968,479) (3.968,479)

Third Interim dividend for the year ended

December 31, 2024 @ Rs. 511 per share - " " : (3.255,044) (3.255,044) (3.255,044)

- - - - (9,268,277) (9,268,277) (9,268,277)
Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the year ended
December 31, 2024 - - - - 6,974,631 6,974,631 6,974,631

Other comprehensive income for the year

ended December 31, 2024 i} i} i} i} 14,380 14,380 14,380
- - - - 6,989,011 6,989,011 6,989,011
Balance as at December 31,2024 63,699 1,296,499 628 138 12,019,459 13,316,724 13,380,423

Acknowledgement

Our people are the key drivers behind the sustained growth of UPFL. The directors acknowledge the contribution of each
employee of the Company. We would also like to express our thanks to our customers for the trust shown in our products. We
are also grateful to our shareholders for their support and confidence in our management.

Future Outlook

Pakistan's economic outlook is cautiously optimistic, supported by positive macroeconomic indicators and a recovery in key
sectors. The easing of inflation is expected to benefit businesses, potentially resulting in lower policy rates, reduced borrowing
costs, and increased investment and growth. We are dedicated to delivering exceptional performance by leveraging our
strong brands, diverse portfolio, and deep customer insights. Furthermore, we are committed to sustainability and social
responsibility, actively addressing critical environmental and social challenges.

Our management team remains committed to overcoming the challenges by driving value for our stakeholders and staying
connected to consumers by harnessing the strength of our brand, introducing delightful innovations, continuously striving for
value-for-money offerings, and driving cost efficiencies throughout the value chain.
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On behalf of the Board
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Board Meetings Attendance

During the year 2024, four Board Meetings were held and the attendance of each director is given below:

Directors

Mr. Sarfaraz Ahmed Rehman
Mr. Amir R. Paracha

Mr. Muhammad Shahzad

Ms. Asima Haq

Mr. Zulfikar Monnoo

Mr. Muhammad Adil Monnoo
Mr. Kamal Monnoo

Mr. Asad Said Jafar

Mr. Khalid Mansoor

Mr. Ali Tariq

Total No. of Meetings Held

L i T

No. of Meetings Attended

L S O B R e i

Board Committee Meetings Held During The Year

Audit Committee
Name of Member

Mr. Khalid Mansoor
Chairman

Mr. Zulfikar Monnoo
Member

Mr. Asad Said Jafar
Member

Mr. Muhammad Adil Monnoo
Member

Mr. Sarfaraz Ahmed Rehman
Member

Ms. Aniga Bawany
Secretary

Terms of Reference

Committee has been constituted by the Board in compliance with Listing Regulations. The Committee oversees the
Internal Audit function, and also reviews audit plans and reports. The Committee conducts its meetings as and when
required. The Committee appraises the Board about the significant discussions and decisions at its meetings and
recommendations in respect of Company’s operations and financial results.

The Committee comprises of five members, three independent Director and two Non-Executive Directors. All
employees of the Company have access to the Committee. The Committee met four times during 2024. Minutes of the

Total No. of Meetings Held

4

No. of Meetings Attended

4

meetings are drawn up expeditiously and circulated for the information and consideration of the Board.



Committee of Directors

Name of Member Total No. of Meetings Held No. of Meetings Attended
Mr. Amir R. Paracha 11 11

Chairman

Mr. Muhammad Shahzad 11 11

Member

Ms. Asima Haq 11 11

Member

Mr. Aman Ghanchi 11 11

Secretary

Terms of Reference
The Committee comprises of three members. Periodic meetings are held to facilitate handling of

operational matters, share transfer, and any other significant matters arising during the normal course
of business operations.

Human Resource & Remuneration Committee

Name of Member Total No. of Meetings Held No. of Meetings Attended
Mr. Asad Said Jafar 2 2
Chairman

Mr. Zulfikar Monnoo 2 2
Member

Mr. Kamal Monnoo 2 2
Member

Mr. Amir R. Paracha 2 2
Member

Mr. Sarfaraz Ahmed Rehman 2 2
Member

Ms. Kanize Fathema Zuberi 2 2
Secretary

Terms of Reference

The Committee has been constituted by the Board in compliance with applicable laws. It comprises of five members,
two of whom are Non-Executive Directors and two are Independent Directors.
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Performance Indicators for 6 years

Financial Position

Property, plant and equipment
Other non-current assets
Current assets

Total assets

Share capital
Reserves
Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Net current assets / (liabilities)

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL TRENDS

Profit or loss

Net sales

Cost of Sales

Gross profit

Operating profit

Profit before tax

Profit after tax

Cash ordinary dividends

Cash flows

Operating activities

Investing activities

Financing activities

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

2024 2023 2022 2021
< (Rupees in thousand)
9,341,920 | 7,865,480 | 6,201,699 [ 4,053,993
84,617 88,192 109,646 132,272
18,561,796 23,106,184 14,305,770 6,202,550
27,988,333 31,059,856 20,617,115 | 10,388,815
63,699 63,699 63,699 63,699
13,316,724 15,595,990 7,450,332 2,905,867
13,380,423 15,659,689 7,514,031 2,969,566
1,742,581 1,439,548 1,180,771 591,678
12,865,329 | 13,960,619 | 11,922,313 | 6,827,571
14,607,910 15,400,167 13,103,084 7,419,249
27,988,333 31,059,856 20,617,115 10,388,815
5,696,467 9,145,565 2,383,457 (625,021)
33,712,049 34,586,732 28,309,317 19,820,946
(20,732,024) | (19,777,895) | (16,359,841) | (10,904,750)
12,980,025 | 14,808,837 | 11,949,476 | 8,916,196
10,177,013 10,472,561 8,506,272 5,501,987
10,141,932 10,353,100 8,366,367 5,422,836
6,974,631 9,744,030 7,952,403 5,169,477
9,623,457 2,763,110 2,594,401 3,564,734
7,082,256 8,290,059 8,796,759 6,317,887
(2,517,933) | (1,089,448) | (5,065,465) |  (504,685)
(9,697,820) | (2,560,877) | (2,019,966) | (3,445,342)
4,515,320 9,648,817 5,009,083 3,297,755

2020 2019
»
7
3,732,128 3,654,460
100,559 108,368
3,614,686 3,326,005
7,447,373 7,088,833
63,699 63,699
2,683,995 2,240,498
2,747,694 2,304,197
410,824 304,680
4,288,855 4,479,956
4,699,679 4,784,636
7,447,373 7,088,833
(674,169) | (1,153,951)
15,572,747 13,291,424
(8,894,178) | (7,789,001)
6,678,569 5,502,423
4,077,508 2,942,876
4,054,958 2,807,800
3,837,412 2,452,938
3,390,721 2,021,704
3,908,226 3,635,518
(264,533) | (1,064,794)
(3,403,137) | (2,057,207)
929,895 689,339




Performance Indicators for 6 years

FINANCIAL RATIOS
Profitability Ratios

Gross Profit Ratio

Net Profit to Sales

EBITDA margin to sales
Operating leverage ratio
Pre Tax return on equity
Post tax return on equity
Return on captial employed

Liquidity Ratios

Current Ratio

Quick / Acid Test Ratio

Cash to current liabilities

Cash flow from operations to sales

Activity / Operating
Performance Ratios

Inventory turnover ratio
Debtor turnover ratio
Creditor turnover ratio
Total assets turnover ratio
Fixed assets turnover ratio
Operating cycle

Investment / Market Ratios

Earnings per share (EPS)

Price earning ratio

Dividend yield ratio

Dividend payout ratio - earnings
Dividend payout ratio - par value
Dividend Cover ratio

Cash dividend*

Market Value - low

Market Value - high

Market Value - year end

Breakup value per share without surplus

on revaluation of fixed assets

Capital Structure Ratios

Financial leverage ratio

Interest cover ratio

Unit

%
%

%
Times
%

%

%

Times
Times
Times
Times

Days
Days
Days
Times
Times
Days

Rs.
Times
Times
Times
Times
Times

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Times
Times

2024

38.50
20.69
31.48

0.81
69.85
48.03
45.53

1.44
1.17
0.35
0.21

64

1
(214)
1.20
3.61
(139)

1,094.92
19.39
0.09
1.71
187.70
0.58
1,877.00
17,075
22,500
21,225

2,100.55

0.06
44211

*This includes interim and proposed final dividend for the year

2023

42.82
28.17
31.04

1.07
89.35
84.10
78.74

1.66
1.33
0.69
0.24

66

11
(204)
1.1
4.40
(126)

1,529.68
14.32
0.02
0.28
42.90
3.57
429.00
17,900
24,000
21,900

2,458.37

0.06
435.00

2022

42.21
28.09
30.79
1.27
159.61
151.71
139.31

1.20
0.94
0.19
0.31

47

10
(164)
1.37
4.56
(107)

1,248.41
19.22
0.01
0.23
28.70
4.35
287.00
19,267
26,000
24,000

1,179.61

0.10
588.11

2021

44.98
26.08
29.09
1.21
189.70
180.84
173.48

0.91
0.69
0.48
0.32

39

(157)
1.91
4.89

(109)

811.53
23.41
0.04
1.00
81.10
1.00
811.00
13,550
22,096
19,000

466.18

0.07
695.70

2020

42.89
24.64
28.08
2.26
160.53
151.92
151.20

0.84
0.57
0.22
0.25

39

16
171)
2.09
4.17
(116)

602.43
23.24
0.04
1.00
60.24
1.00
602.41
6,950
15,000
14,000

431.35

0.01
394.46

2019

41.40
18.46
23.85
1.34
133.81
116.90
116.90

0.74
0.51
0.16
0.27

44
19
(165)
1.87
3.64
(103)

385.08
19.48
0.05
1.00
38.60
1.00
386.00
5,170
7,625
7,500

361.73

0.02
24.01
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Performance Indicators for 6 years

Rupees

Rupees

Rs. in million

2000 |
1800 -
1600 -
1400 -
1200 -
1000 -
800
600 -
400 -

200 -

30,000

25,000

20,000

15,000

10,000

5,000

12,000

10,000

8,000

6,000

4,000

2,000

Comparison of EPS and DPS

1,877.00 W

1094.92

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

I EPS —ME=- DPS

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

== Share price-Low = Share price-High A Share price year end

Comparison of PBT and PAT

10,353 10,142

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

mmm Profit beforetax  —=M=Profit after tax



Statement of Financial Position

Horizontal Analysis for 6 years (Rs. in thousand)
2024 24Vs23 2023 23Vs.22 2022 22Vs.21 2021 21Vs.20 2020 20Vs.19 2019 19Vs.18
Rs. % Rs. % Rs. % Rs. % Rs. % Rs. %
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Share capital 63,699 - 63,699 - 63,699 - 63,699 - 63,699 - 63,699 -
Reserves 13,316,724 | (1461) | 15595990 | 10933 | 7450332| 15639 | 2,905,867 827 | 2,683,995 1979 | 2,240,498 2251
13,380,423 | (1455) | 15,659,689 | 10841 | 7,514,031| 15303 | 2,969,566 807 | 2,747,694 1925 | 2,304,197 2175
Non-current liabilities
Staff retirement benefits 64,663 @31 67,576 27.14 53,150 | 24262 15,513 -39.70 25,727 657 24,141 7244
Long term borrowing 496,089 |  (11.07) 557,866 1359 | 491,122 19126 168,619 | 61268 23,660 100.00 - -
Deferred income - government grant 241,562 | (2072) 304,683 36.15 | 223780| 66451 29,271 | 10000 - - - -
Lease liabilities - 0.00 - 0.00 -| -10000 20,571 | 521550 387 100.00 - | (100.00)
Deferred taxation 940,267 84.57 509,423 2343 | 412719 1538 357,704 093 | 361,050 2870 | 280,539 [ 10671
1,742,581 2105 | 1,439,548 2192 [ 1,180,771 9956 591,678 4402 | 410,824 3484 | 304,680 7457
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 12,485,693 (858) | 13,658,132 1663 | 11,710250 | 7482 | 6,698,532 6068 | 4,168,976 (247) | 4274576 | 4907
Provision 185,184 1699 158,294 27.80 123,861|  (0.53) 124,524 1558 | 107,740 256 | 105,054 96.23
Accrued interest / mark up 6,724 (3.94) 7,000 18.89 5888| 213.86 1,876 | 20258 620 | (9821) 34,717 | 15926
Sales tax payable - - - - - - - - - - - -
Current portion of deferred income - - - - - -
government grant 63,121 046 62,830 62.38 38,694 | 1,61821 2,252
Current portion of long term borrowings 124,607 67.57 74,363 | 24801 21,368| 100.00 - - - - - -
Current portion of lease liabilities - - - | (100.00) 22,252 | 5,649.87 387 | (96.64) 11,519 (62.10) 30,392 035
Short term borrowings - - - - - - - - - | (100.00) 35217 | (9625)
12,865,329 (7.85) | 13,960,619 17.10 | 11,922313| 7462 | 6,827,571 59.19 | 4,288,855 (4.27) | 4,479,956 1476
27,988,333 (9.89) | 31,059,856 50.65 | 20,617,115 9845 [ 10388815 3950 | 7,447,373 506 | 7,088,833 1872
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 9,341,920 1877 | 7,865,480 2683 | 6201699 5298 4,053,993 862 | 3,732,128 213 | 365446 3129
Right-of-use assets -| (10000) 3575 | (8572) 25,029 (46.19) 46511 | 26999 12,571 (32:39) 18,594 | (46.65)
Intangible assets 81,637 - 81,637 - 81,637 - 81,637 - 81,637 - 81,637 -
Long term loans - - - - -| (100.00) 1,144 | (66.06) 3,371 (34.63) 5157 | (5452) <
Long term deposits 2,980 - 2,980 - 2,980 - 2,980 - 2,980 - 2,980 - N
9,426,537 1852 | 7,953,672 2602 | 6311345 5076 4,186,265 923 | 3,832,687 186 | 3,762,828 29.11 8
t
]
Current assets Q
[}
o
Stores and spares 444,628 4730 301,859 5261 197,796 0.64 196,537 1962 | 164,302 1692 | 140520 | 18645 —
Stock in trade 3,044,709 | (27.76) | 4,214,955 4444 | 2918231| 11976 | 1,327,888 3291 | 999,124 1072 | 902,351 (630) g
Trade debts - net 972,941 | (1305) | 1,118,987 867 | 1,029,752 9827 519,372 1409 | 455214 | (4757) | 868,282 70.49 c
Loans and advances 32,973 | (51.71) 68,288 | 160.89 26,175| 64129 3,531 | (94.90) 69,256 |  399.90 13,854 570 c
Trade deposits and short term <
prepayments 116,786 (3.58) 121,116 | (7463) | 477,329| 48172 82,055 6.02 77,395 43717 14,408 | (57.62) !
Other receivables 121,129 | (2197) 155225 | (3520) | 239,536| 149.40 96,045 67.02 57,506 79.43 32,050 | (3201) 8
Taxation - net 2,378,372 | (1407) | 2,767,828 | 40054 | 552,969 306 536,557 | (17.30) | 648,799 5222 | 426,235 6153 b
Short term investments 6,641,976 7433 | 3,809,898 | (33.99) | 5,771,861| 100.00 - - - - - - g
Cash and bank balances 4,515,320 | (5320) | 9,648,817 | 31647 | 2,316,789| (2975)| 3,297,755 | 25464 | 929,895 2834 | 724556 | (35.01) ]
Sales tax refundable - net 292,962 | (67.42) 899,211 1598 | 775332 44291 142,810 | (3301) | 213,195 464 | 203,749 | 227.44 %
18,561,796 | (1967) | 23,106,184 61.52 (14,305,770 13064 | 6,202,550 7159 | 3,614,686 868 | 3,326,005 882 o
27,988,333 (9.89) | 31,059,856 5065 20,617,115 9845 | 10,388,815 3950 | 7,447,373 506 | 7,088,833 1872 IE
C
8
Balance Sheet Analysis - Equity & Liabilities E
o]
| [a
2024
2023 3
Equi
. 2022 " Eauy
g Non-current Liability
g 2021 m Current Liability
2020 °
2019
| >
2,500 5,000 7,500 10,000 12500 15,000 17500 20,000 22500 25,00 27500 30,000 32500

Rs. in million

N
N



()
UMQWW Pakistan Foods Limited - Annual Report 2024

N
W

Statement of Financial Position

Vertical Analysis for 6 years (Rs. in thousand)
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Capital and reserves Rs. % Rs. % Rs. % Rs. % Rs. % Rs. %
Share capital 63,699 0.23 63,699 021 63,699 031 63,699 061 63,699 0.86 63,699 090
Reserves 13,316,724 47.58 | 15,595,990 5021 | 7,450,332 36.14 | 2,905,867 2797 | 2,683,995 36.04 | 2,240,498 3161
13,380,423 47.81 | 5,659,689 5042 | 7,514,031 3645 | 2,969,566 2858 | 2,747,694 3689 | 2,304,197 3250
Non-current liabilities
Staff retirement benefits 64,663 0.23 67,576 022 53,150 026 15,513 0.15 25,727 035 24,141 034
Long term borrowing 496,089 177 | 557,866 1.80 491,122 238 168,619 162 23,660 032 - -
Deferred income -
government grant 241,562 0.86 304,683 098 223,780 1.09 29,271 028 - - - -
Lease liabilities - - - - - - 20,571 020 387 001 - 0.00
Deferred taxation 940,267 336 509,423 164 412,719 200 357,704 344 361,050 4.85 280,539 396
1,742,581 6.23 | 1,439,548 463 | 1,180,771 573 591,678 570 | 410,824 552 | 304,680 430
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 12,485,693 44.61 | 13,658,132 4397 | 11,710,250 56.80 | 6,698,532 6448 | 4,168,976 5598 | 4,274,576 60.30
Provision 185,184 0.66 | 158294 051 123,861 060 124,524 120 107,740 145 105,054 148
Accrued interest / mark up 6,724 0.02 7,000 002 5,888 0.03 1,876 002 620 001 34,717 049
Current portion of deferred income -
government grant 63,121 0.23 62,830 020 38,694 0.19 2,252 0.02 - - - -
Current portion of long term borrowings 124,607 0.45 74,363 024 21,368 0.10 - - - - - -
Current portion of lease liabilities - 0.00 - - 22,252 011 387 0.00 11,519 0.15 30,392 043
Short term borrowings - - - - - - - - - - 35,217 0.50
12,865,329 45.97 | 3,960,619 4495 | 11,922,313 57.83 | 6,827,571 6572 | 4,288,855 5759 | 4,479,956 63.20
27,988,333 100.00 | 31,059,856 100.00 | 20,617,115 100.00 | 10,388,815 10000 | 7,447,373 100.00 | 7,088,833 100.00
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 9,341,920 33.38 | 7,865,480 2532 | 6,201,699 3008 | 4,053,993 3902 | 3,732,128 50.11 | 3,654,460 5155
Right-of-use assets - 0.00 3,575 001 25,029 012 46,511 045 12,571 0.17 18,594 026
Intangible assets 81,637 0.29 81,637 026 81,637 0.40 81,637 079 81,637 110 81,637 115
Long term loans - - - - - - 1,144 001 3,371 005 5,157 007
Long term deposits 2,980 0.01 2,980 001 2,980 001 2,980 003 2,980 004 2,980 0.04
9,426,537 33.68 | 7,953,672 2561 | 6,311,345 3061 | 4,186,265 4030 | 3,832,687 5146 | 3,762,828 53.08
Current assets
Stores and spares 444,628 159 | 301,859 097 197,796 096 196,537 189 164,302 221 140,520 198
Stock in trade 3,044,709 10.88 | 4,214,955 1357 | 2,918,231 1415 | 1,327,888 1278 | 999,124 1342 | 902,351 1273
Trade debts - net 972,941 3.48 | 1,118,987 360 | 1,029,752 499 519,372 500 | 455214 6.11 868,282 12.25
Loans and advances 32973 0.12 68,288 022 26,175 013 3,531 003 69,256 093 13,854 020
Trade deposits and short term
prepayments 116,786 042 | 121,116 039 477,329 232 82,055 079 77,395 104 14,408 020
Other receivables 121,129 043 155,225 050 239,536 116 96,045 092 57,506 077 32,050 045
Taxation - net 2,378,372 850 | 2,767,828 891 552,969 268 536,557 516 648,799 871 426,235 601
Short term investments 6,641,976 23.73 | 3,809,898 1227 | 5,771,861 28.00 - - - - - -
Cash and bank balances 4,515,320 16.13 | 9,648,817 3107 | 2,316,789 1124 | 3,297,755 3174 929,895 1249 724,556 1022
Sales tax refundable - net 292,962 1.05 899,211 290 775332 376 142,810 137 213,195 286 203,749 287
18,561,796 66.32 | 23,106,184 7439 | 14,305,770 6939 | 6,202,550 5970 | 3,614,686 4854 | 3,326,005 4692
27,988,333 100.00 | 31,059,856 100.00 | 20,617,115 100.00 | 10,388,815 10000 | 7,447,373 10000 | 7,088,833 10000
Statement of Financial Position Analysis - Assets
2024
2023
5 2022
o ® Property, plant and equipment
2021
OtherLong term assets
2020
m Currentassets
2019
1,000 5,000 9,000 13,000 17,000 21,000 25,000 29,000 33,000

Rs. in million




Profit or Loss Account and Other Comprehensive Income

Horizontal Analysis for 6 years (Rs. in thousand)
2024 24Vs.23 2023 23Vs.22 2022 22Vs. 21 2021 21Vs. 20 2020 20Vs. 19 2019 19Vs.18
Rs. % Rs. % Rs. % Rs. % Rs. % Rs. %

Sales - net 33,712,049 (253) | 34,586,732 2217| 28,309,317 4283| 19,820,946 2728 | 15572,747 1716 | 13,291,424 11.71
Cost of sales (20,732,024) 4.82 | (19,777,895) 20.89| (16,359,841) 5002 (10,904,750) 2261 | (8,894,178) 14.19 | (7,789,001) 1893
Gross profit 12,980,025 | (12.35) | 14,808,837 2393| 11,949,476 34.02 8,916,196 3350 6,678,569 21.38 5,502,423 287
Distribution cost (4,314,182) | (17.16) | (5,207,545) 4066( (3,702,303) 3035| (2,840,376) 2490 | (2,274,181) (0.87) | (2,294,223) | (14.73)
Administrative expenses (757,200) | (14.18) (882,274) 58.65 (556,120) 1442 (486,020) 790 (450,428) 15.02 (391,596) 24.16
Other operating expenses (516,632) | (2452) (684,420) 2115 (564,935) 5218 (371,223) 2984 (285,906) 60.56 (178,067) 2539
Otherincome 2,785,002 1423 2,437,963 76.64 1,380,154 38698 283,410 | (33.85) 428,421 40.77 304,339 | (11.04)
Profit from operations 10,177,013 (282) | 10,472,561 2312 8,506,272 54.60 5,501,987 3431 4,096,475 3920 2,942,876 1572
Finance costs (35,081) | (70.63) (119,461) | (14.61) (139,905) 7676 (79,151) 90.65 41,517) | (69.26) (135,076) 185.57
Profit before taxation 10,141,932 | (204)| 10,353,100 2375 8,366,367 5428 5,422,836 3373 4,054,958 4442 2,807,800 1250
Taxation (3,167,301) | 42002 (609,070) 4713 (413,964) 6339 (253,359) 1646 (217,546) | (38.70) (354,862) | (53.39)
Profit after taxation 6,974,631 | (2842) 9,744,030 2253 7,952,403 5383 5,169,477 3471 3,837,412 56.44 2,452,938 4142
Other comprehensive

income/(loss) 14,380 (2,864.95 485 | (102.54) (19,124) | (1,76731) 1,147 | (74.96) 4,581 | 256.08 (2,935) ((10,970)
Total comprehensive income 6,989,011 | (28.28) 9,744,515 2283 7,933,279 5343 5,170,624 3458 3,841,993 56.82 2,450,003 4125

<
N
Q&
Vertical Analysis for 6 years . ©
(Rs. in thousand) s
[-%
@
Sales - net 33,712,049 | 10000 | 34,586,732| 10000| 28,309,317 | 100.00| 19,820,946 | 100.00 | 15,572,747 | 100.00 | 13,291,424 | 100.00 —
[
Cost of sales (20,732,024) | (61.50) | (19,777.895) | (57.18) | (16,359,841) | (57.79)| (10,904,750) | (55.02) | (8,894,178) | (57.11) | (7,789,001) | (58.60) g
Gross profit 12,980,025 | 3850 | 14,808837| 4282| 11,949,476 | 4221| 8916,196| 4498 | 6678569 | 4289 | 5,502,423 4140 g
1
Distribution cost (4,314,182) | (1280) | (5.207,545)| (15.06)| (3,702,303) | (13.08)| (2,840,376) | (14.33) | (2,274,181) | (14.60) | (2,294,223) | (17.26) o
[0}
Administrative expenses (757,200) | (225) (882,274)| (255) (556,120) | (1.96)|  (486,020) | (245) | (450,428) | (289) | (391,596) (295) "é
Other operating expenses (516,632) | (1.53) (684,420) | (1.98) (564,935) | (200)| (371,223)| (1.87) | (285906) | (1.84) | (178,067) (134) |
%)
Otherincome 2,785,002 826 2,437,963 705| 1,380,154 488 283,410 143 428,421 275 304,339 229 -8
o
Profit from operations 10,177,013 | 3019 | 10472561 3028| 8506272 | 3005| 5501987 | 2776 | 4,09,475 2631 | 2942876 2214 T8
c
Finance cost (35,081) [ (0.10) (119,461)| (035) (139,905) |  (0.49) (79,151) | (0.40) 41517) | ©27)| (135,076) (1.02) E
%]
Profit before taxation 10,141,932 | 3008 | 10,353,100 2993| 8,366,367 | 2955| 5422,836| 2736 | 4,054,958 2604 | 2,807,800 2112 éé
o
Taxation (3,167,301) | (9.40) (609,070) | (1.76) 413,964) | (146)| (253359)| (128) | (217,546) | (140) | (354,862) 267)
Profit after taxation 6,974,631 | 2069 9,744,030 2817| 7952403 | 2809| 5,169,477 | 2608 | 3,837,412 2464 | 2,452,938 1846 3
Other comprehensive
income/(loss) 14,380 004 485 0.00 (19,124) | (0.07) 1,147 001 4,581 0.03 (2,935) 0.02)
Total comprehensive income 6,989,011 2073 9,744,515 2817 7,933,279 28.02 5,170,624 | 2609 3,841,993 24.67 2,450,003 1843
[ ]
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Rs. in million

Graphical Analysis

Profit orLoss Analysis - Income
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Year
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2020

2019
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Rs. in million

Profit or Loss Analysis - Expenses
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2021

2020

2019
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Cash Flows Analysis

10,0001

5,000
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Gender pay gap statement under Circular 10 of 2024

Following is gender pay gap calculated for the year ended December 31, 2024.

(i) Mean Gender Pay Gap: -32%
(ii) Median Gender Pay Gap: -39%

AmirR.Paracha

Chief Executive Officer
Karachi

28th February 2025
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Statement of Wealth Generated and Distributed

Total Revenue inclusive of sales tax and other Income

Brought-in-materials and services

To Employees

To Government

To Shareholders

To Providers of Capital

Retained for reinvestment & future growth

Total

UPFL - WEALTH DISTRIBUTION 2024

® Employees B Government ~ Share holders B Lenders
M Retained for reinvestment & future growth

0.11%

2024 2023
Rs.in Rs.in
thousand thousand
43,071,810 43,639,482
(22,507,908) (22,470,750)
20,563,902 21,168,732

2,582,443 2,833,312
10,538,874 8,228,974
9,268,277 1,598,857
22,992 23,855
(1,848,684) 8,483,734
20,563,902 21,168,732

UPFL - WEALTH DISTRIBUTION 2023

W Employees B Government  Share holders m Lenders
M Retained for reinvestment & future growth

38.87%




Pattern of Shareholding

As at December 31, 2024
Number of Shareholders Shareholdings’ Slab Total Shares Held
From To
985 1 100 20,779
101 101 500 20,063
18 501 1,000 11,633
17 1,001 5,000 34,451
2 5,001 10,000 12,578
2 10,001 15,000 25,158
1 15,001 20,000 18,016
3 25,001 30,000 89,751
4 30,001 35,000 135,519
2 35,001 40,000 74,390
2 45,001 50,000 99,780
2 50,001 55,000 105,915
1 65,001 70,000 67,597
1 70,001 75,000 70,085
1 90,001 95,000 91,013
2 95,001 100,000 198,461
1 125,001 130,000 129,028
1 135,001 140,000 139,515
1 145,001 150,000 149,924
1 4,875,001 4,880,000 4,876,294
1,148 6,369,950
Categories of Shareholders Number of Number of Percentage
Shareholders Shares Held
Associated Companies, undertakings and 1 4,876,294 76.55
related parties
Directors, CEO and their spouse(s) and minor 11 429,028 6.74
children
Public Sector Companies and Corporations 2 64 0.00
Banks, development finance institutions, 4 1,325 0.02

non-banking finance companies, insurance

companies, takaful, modarabas and pension

funds

Executives 1 30 0.00

General Public

UALQQA’W Pakistan Foods Limited - Annual Report 2024

a. Local 1061 1,059,109 16.63

b. Foreign 53 609 0.00
Foreign Companies 1 2,460 0.04
Others 14 1,031 0.02

Totals 1,148 6,369,950 100.00
Shareholders holding 5% or more: Shares Held Percentage
CONOPCO, INC. 4,876,294 76.55

N
(o]



()
UMQM’W Pakistan Foods Limited - Annual Report 2024

N
O

Pattern of Shareholding Additional Information

As at December 31, 2024

Information on shareholding required under reporting framework of Code of Corporate Governance is as follows:

Shareholders’ Category Number of Number of
Shareholders Shares Held

i)  Associated Companies, undertakings and
related parties (hame-wise details)

CONOPCO, INC. 1 4,876,294
ii) Directors, CEO and their spouse(s) and minor children

Mr. Amir R. Paracha

Mr. Muhammad Shahzad

Ms. Asima Haq

Mr. Zulfikar Monnoo

Mr. Muhammad Adil Monnoo
Mr. Kamal Monnoo

Mr. Sarfaraz Ahmed Rehman
Mr. Asad Said Jafar

Mr. Ali Tarig

Mr. Khalid Mansoor

Mrs. Sarwat Zulfikar W/o Mr. Zulfikar Monnoo

_._._._._._._._._._._.
-
Ul
N
o
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iii) Public Sector Companies and Corporations 2 64
iv) Banks, Development Finance Institutions,

Non-Banking Finance Companies, Insurance Companies,

Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds 4 1,325

v) Shareholders holding 5% or more voting rights (name wise details)

CONOPCO, INC. 1 4,876,294

Dealings in Shares by Directors, Executives and their spouses
and minor children

During January 01, 2024 to December 31, 2024

S.No. Name Acquired during
theyear

1. Mr. Muhammad Shahzad 1

2. Mr. Kamal Monnoo 32,613



Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

The Company has complied with the requirements of the

Regulations in the following manner:

1.

The total number of Directors are 10 as per the following:

11.

Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly
endorsed the financial statements before approval of
the board.

12.  The board has formed committees comprising of
a. Male: 9 members given below:
b. Female: 1
a) Audit Committee
2. The composition of Board is as follows:
*  Mr.Khalid Mansoor
*  Mr. Asad Said Jafar
Category Names «  Mr. Zulfikar Monnoo
; *  Mr. Muhammad Adil Monnoo
Independent Directors . Mr. Sarfaraz Ahmed Rehman - Mr Sarfaraz Ahmed Rehman
(Chairman of the Board)
«  Mr. Khalid Mansoor b)  HRand Remuneration Committee
« Mr. Asad Said Jafar «  Mr. Asad Said Jafar
Executive Director «  Mr. AmirR. Paracha (CEO) +  Mr. Zulfikar Monnoo
*  Mr.Kamal Monnoo
«  Mr.Muhammad Shahzad (CFO) . Mr Sarfaraz Ahmed Rehman
Non-Executive Directors «  Mr. Zulfikar Monnoo «  Mr. AmirR. Paracha
* Mr.Muhammad Adil Monnoo 13.  The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have
+  Mr.Kamal Monnoo been formed, documented and advised to the
«  Mr.AliTarig committee for compliance.

Female Directors +  Ms.AsimaHaq 14.  The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly)

of the committee were as per following:

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is a) Audit Committee - 04 Meetings during the year
serving as a director on more than seven listed b) HR and Remuneration Committee - 02 Meetings
companies, including this company. during the year

4. The company has adopted Code of Conduct and has 15.  The Board has co-sourced the internal audit function
ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to to A. F. Ferguson and Co (a member firm of Pricewater
disseminate it throughout the company along with its House Coopers) and Ernst & Young who are
supporting policies and procedures. considered suitably qualified and experienced for the

purpose and are conversant with the policies and

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, procedures of the company.
overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the
company. The Board has ensured that complete record 16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed
of particulars of the significant policies along with their that they have been given a satisfactory rating under
date of approval or updating is maintained by the the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of
company. Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered

with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and

6. All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and all their partners are in compliance with International
decisions on relevant matters have been taken by Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code
board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
provisions of the Act and these Regulations. Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the

partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a

7. The meetings of the board were presided over by the close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and
Chairman and in his absence by a Director elected by the non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer,
board for this purpose. The board has complied with the chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company
requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to secretary or director of the company.
frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting
of board. 17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with

them have not been appointed to provide other services

8. The board of directors have a formal policy and except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or
transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have
accordance with the Act and these Regulations. confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in

this regard.

9. All the Directors of the Company has completed °
Directors Training Program. 18.  We confirm that all requirements including regulations 3, 6,

7. 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been

10. The board has approved appointment of Chief Financial complied with.

Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit,

including their remuneration and terms and conditions 19.  Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other

of employment and complied with relevant than Regulations 3, 6, 7, 8,27, 32, 33 and 36 is as follows:

requirements of the Regulations.

S.No Non-Mandatory Requirement Reg.NO | Explanation

The Board may establish a dedicated Currently, the Board has not constituted a
sustainability = committee or  assign 10A(5) separate Sustainability Committee and the
additional responsibilities to an existing functions will be performed by the Board.
Board committee.

For the purpose of Clause 6 (1), the Company has not rounded up the fraction as one since the Board has adequate Independent
Directors i.e. 03 Independent Directors out of the Board of 10 Directors. We have duly complied with the minimum requirement of

Executive & Independent Director. The additional number out of 10 is assigned to Non-Executive Director.

Amir R. Paracha
Chief Executive Officer

Karachi
February 28,2025

Sarfaraz Ahmed Rehman
Chairman
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Independent Auditor’s Review Report

To the Members of Unilever Pakistan Foods Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Unilever Pakistan Foods Limited (“the
Company”) for the year ended 31 December 2024 in accordance with the requirements of Regulation No. 36 of the
Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility
is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of
the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A
review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the
Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and
internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to
consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion
on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, of its related party transactions. We are only
required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions
by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does
not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the
Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024.

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Date: 20 March, 2025
Karachi
UDIN: CR202410106DxsjoTOYN
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the members of Unilever Pakistan Foods Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Unilever Pakistan Foods Limited (the Company), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of
financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity
and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of
2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at
31 December 2024 and of the profit and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the
year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.



Following are the Key audit matters:

S.No.

Key audit matters

How the matters were addressed in our audit

Revenue Recognition

Refer notes 4.17 and 26 to the financial
statements.

The Company is engaged in the manufactur-
ing and sale of consumer and commercial
food products. The Company recognized net
revenue of Rs. 33.7 billion from the sale of food
products for the year ended 31 December
2024.

We identified recognition of revenue as a key
audit matter because revenue is one of the key
performance indicators of the Company and
gives rise to an inherent risk that it could be
subject to misstatement to meet expectations
or targets, consequently requiring significant
time and audit efforts.

Our audit procedures in respect of recognition of
revenue, amongst others, included the following:

. Obtaining an understanding of the
process relating to recognition of revenue;

. Comparing a sample of revenue
transactions recorded during the year with
sales orders, sales invoices, delivery
documents and other relevant underlying
documents;

. Comparing a sample of revenue
transactions recorded around the year end
and post year end with the sales orders,
sales invoices, delivery documents and
other relevant underlying documentation
to assess if the related revenue was
recorded in the appropriate accounting
period;

. Comparing the details of journal entries
posted to revenue accounts during the
year, which met certain specific risk-based
criteria, with the relevant underlying
documentation;

. Comparing a sample of sales return
subsequent to the year end with the credit
notes, customer correspondence and
other underlying documentation to assess
revenue recognized during the year was
not overstated;

. Assessing the appropriateness of
accounting policy for revenue recognition
and comparing with the applicable
accounting and reporting standards; and

. Assessing the adequacy of disclosures
related to revenue as required under the
accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The Other Information comprises the information included in the
Annual Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017)
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’'s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.



We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement
of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in
conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the
Company’s business; and

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the Company
and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Muhammad Taufig.

Date: 20 March, 2025 KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Karachi Chartered Accountants
UDIN: AR202410106fqavCEFSR
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Statement of Financial Position

As at December 31, 2024

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Note 2024 2023

<+—(Rupeesin thousand) —

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use asset

Intangible assets

Long term deposits

Current assets

Stores and spares

Stock-in-trade

Trade debts - net

Loans and advances

Trade deposits and short term prepayments
Other receivables

Sales tax refundable - net

Taxation - net

Short term investments

Cash and bank balances

Totalassets

71

10
11
12
13
14

15
16

9,341,920 7,865,480
= 3,575

81,637 81,637
2,980 2,980
9,426,537 7,953,672
444,628 301,859
3,044,709 4,214,955
972,941 1,118,987
32,973 68,288
116,786 121,116
121,129 155,225
292,962 899,211
2,378,372 2,767,828
6,641,976 3,809,898
4,515,320 9,648,817
18,561,796 23,106,184
27,988,333 31,059,856




Statement of Financial Position

As at December 31, 2024

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves

Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

Staff retirement benefits

Long term borrowings

Deferred income - government grant
Deferred taxation

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Current portion of deferred income - government grant
Current portion of long term borrowings

Provisions

Unpaid dividend

Unclaimed dividend

Accrued interest / mark up

Totalliabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Contingencies and commitments

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Amir R.Paracha Asima Haq

Chief Executive Officer Director

Note

17
18

19
20.1
20.2

21

22
20.2
20.1

23

25

2024

2023

<+——(Rupeesin thousand) —

63,699 63,699
13,316,724 15,595,990
13,380,423 15,659,689

64,663 67,576

496,089 557,866
241,562 304,683
940,267 509,423
1,742,581 1,439,548
11,770,068 12,587,327
63,121 62,830
124,607 74,363
185,184 158,294
657,741 1,039,106
57,884 31,699
6,724 7,000
12,865,329 13,960,619
14,607,910 15,400,167
27,988,333 31,059,856
Muhammad Shahzad

Director and Chief Financial Officer
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income

For the year ended December 31, 2024

Note 2024 2023

<+——(Rupeesin thousand) —

Sales - net 26 33,712,049 34,586,732
Cost of sales 27 (20,732,024) (19,777,895)
Gross profit 12,980,025 14,808,837
Distribution costs 28 (4,314,182) (5,207,545)
Administrative expenses 29 (757,200) (882,274)
Other operating expenses 30 (516,632) (684,420)
Other income 31 2,785,002 2,437,963
Operating profit 10,177,013 10,472,561

Finance costs 32 (35,081) (119,461)
Profit before income tax and final taxes 10,141,932 10,353,100
Taxation - Final Taxes (108,850) (108,700)
Profit before income tax 10,033,082 10,244,400
Taxation - Income Tax 33 (3,058,451) (500,370)
Profit after taxation 6,974,631 9,744,030

Other comprehensive income which will not be reclassified to
the profit or loss in subsequent periods:

Gain on remeasurements of post employment 19.8 23,573 795
defined benefit obligation

Impact of deferred tax (9,193) (310)

14,380 485

Total comprehensive income 6,989,011 9,744,515

<+———————(Rupees) ——

Basic and diluted earnings per share 34 1,094.92 1,529.68

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Amir R.Paracha Asima Haq Muhammad Shahzad
Chief Executive Officer Director Director and Chief Financial Officer



Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended December 31, 2024

Share Reserves Total
Capital Capital Revenue Sub Total
Issued, Share Special General Unappropriated
subscribed and premium profit
paid up capital
< (Rupees in thousand) >
Balance as at January 1, 2023 63,699 1,296,499 628 138 6,153,067 7,450,332 7,514,031
Transactions with owners of the Company - Distribution
First interim dividend for the year ended
December 31, 2023 @ Rs. 72 per share - - - - (458,636) (458,636) (458,636)
Second Interim dividend for the year ended
December 31, 2023 @ Rs. 179 per share - - - - (1,140,22)| |(1,140,221)| [(1,140,221)
- - - - (1,598,857) (1,598,857) (1,598,857)
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year ended
December 31, 2023 - - - - 9,744,030 9,744,030 9,744,030
Other comprehensive income for the year
ended December 31, 2023 - - - - 485 485 485
- - - - 9,744,515 9,744,515 9,744,515
Balance as at December 31,2023 63,699 1,296,499 628 138 14,298,725 15,595,990 15,659,689
Transactions with owners of the Company - Distribution
Final Dividend for the year ended
December 31, 2023 @ Rs. 178 per share - - - - (1,133,851)| | (1,133,851)| |(1,133,851)
<
N
First Interim dividend for the year ended 2
December 31, 2024 @ Rs. 143 per share - - - - (910,903) (910,903) (910,903) t
]
Q.
[}
Second Interim dividend for the year ended E
December 31, 2024 @ Rs. 623 per share - - - - (3,968,479) | | (3,968,479) | | (3,968,479) g
<
c
Third Interim dividend for the year ended g
December 31, 2024 @ Rs. 511 per share - - - - (3,255,044) | | (3,255,044) | |(3,255,044) -CI;
[}
s
- - - - (9,268,277) (9,268,277) (9,268,277) =
=
[%)
Total comprehensive income for the year '8
o
Profit for the year ended December 31, 2024 - - - - 6,974,631 6,974,631 6,974,631 L
e
Other comprehensive income for the year .g
ended December 31, 2024 - - - - 14,380 14,380 14,380 <
o
- - - - 6,989,011 6,989,011 6,989,011 o
Balance as at December 31, 2024 63,699 1,296,499 628 138 12,019,459 13,316,724 13,380,423 3
The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.
[ ]
Amir R.Paracha Asima Haq Muhammad Shahzad : )
Chief Executive Officer Director Director and Chief Financial Officer
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31, 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before income tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Depreciation on right-of-use asset

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Provision for staff retirement benefits

Provision for fixed assets

Mark-up on long term borrowings and leases

Return on short term investments held at fair value through profit or loss

Return on savings accounts

Changes in working capital:

Stores and spares

Stock in trade

Trade debts - net

Loans and advances

Trade deposits and short term prepayments
Sales tax refundable - net

Other receivables

Trade and other payables

Provisions

Cash generated from operations (carried forward)

Note

6.2
7.2
31
19.7
27
32
31
31

2024

2023

<+—(Rupeesinthousand) —»

10,033,082 10,244,400
444,962 338,561
3,575 21,454
(10,010) -
20,661 15,221
125,197 23,736
22,992 23,855
(1,094,973) (732,003)
(1,255,847) (934,958)
(1,743,443) (1,244,134)
8,289,639 9,000,266
(142,769) (104,063)
1,170,246 (1,296,724)
146,046 (89,235)
35,315 (42,113)
4,330 356,213
606,249 (123,879)
34,096 84,311
(817,259) 3,100,425
26,890 34,433
1,063,144 1,919,368
9,352,783 10,919,634




Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31, 2024

Note 2024 2023
<+—(Rupeesinthousand) —»
Cash generated from operations (brought forward) 9,352,783 10,919,634
Mark up paid (23,268) (22,450)
Income tax paid (2,247,259) (2,607,125)
Net cash generated from operating activities 7,082,256 8,290,059

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (2,046,599) (2,026,078)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 10,010 -

Short term investments made during the year held at fair value

through profit or loss (1,737,191) 1,672
Return received on savings accounts 31 1,255,847 934,958
Net cash used in investing activities (2,517,933) (1,089,448)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Lease liability payments - (22,545)
Proceeds from long term financing - 246,146
Repayment of long term loan (74,363) (21,368)
Dividends paid (9,623,457) (2,763,110)
Net cash used in financing activities (9,697,820) (2,560,877)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (5,133,497) 4,639,734
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 9,648,817 5,009,083
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 42 4,515,320 9,648,817

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Amir R.Paracha Asima Haq Muhammad Shahzad
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Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2024

1.

2.1

2.2

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Pakistan and is listed on the Pakistan Stock
Exchange. It manufactures and sells consumer and commercial food products under brand names of Rafhan,
Knorr, Energile, Glaxose-D, Hellmann and Food Solutions. The registered office of the Company is situated at

Avari Plaza, Fatima Jinnah Road, Karachi.

The Company is a subsidiary of Conopco Inc. USA, whereas its ultimate parent Company is Unilever PLC United
Kingdom.

The manufacturing facilities and sales offices of the Company are situated at the following locations:

Factory

- 52-Km, Multan Road Lahore, Parna Plant Near Bhai Pheru

Sales Offices

- 6th Floor, Crystal Mall, Bosan Road, Multan

- Capital Business Center, Plot 12-A, G-8 Markaz, Islamabad

- 12th Floor, 1203/1204 Tricon Towers, Gulberg Il, Jail Road, Lahore

- The Arcadian Plaza, C469+PF9, 4th Floor, Office # 27 & 28 Kohinoor City, Faisalabad
- Plot#A/51-B SITE Area, Hyderabad

- HPC Factory, Laghari Road, Rahim Yar Khan

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Pakistan as are notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS and IFAS, the
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Changes in accounting standards, interpretations and pronouncements

New or amendments / interpretations to existing standards, interpretations and forthcoming
requirements

The following amendments to published standards are mandatory for the financial year beginning on
1 January 2024 and are relevant to the Company.



- Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements)

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (amendment to IAS 1 in October 2022) aims to improve the information
an entity provides when its right to defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve months is subject to compliance
with conditions. The amendment is also intended to address concerns about classifying such a liability as
current or non-current. Only covenants with which a company must comply on or before the reporting date
affect the classification of a liability as current or non-current. Covenants with which the company must comply
after the reporting date (i.e. future covenants) do not affect a liability’s classification at that date. However, when
non-current liabilities are subject to future covenants, companies will now need to disclose information to help
users understand the risk that those liabilities could become repayable within 12 months after the reporting
date. The amendments apply retrospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024,
with earlier application permitted. These amendments also specify the transition requirements for companies
that may have early-adopted the previously issued but not yet effective 2020 amendments to IAS 1(as referred
above).

- Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements)

Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to IAS 1 in January 2020) apply retrospectively
for the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 (as deferred vide amendments to IAS 1 in October
(2022) with earlier application permitted. These amendments in the standards have been added to further
clarify when a liability is classified as current. Convertible debt may need to be reclassified as ‘current’. The
standard also amends the aspect of classification of liability as non-current by requiring the assessment of the
entity’s right at the end of the reporting period to defer the settlement of liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period. An entity's expectation and discretion at the reporting date to refinance or to reschedule
payments on a long-term basis are no longer relevant for the classification of a liability as current or
non-current. An entity shall apply those amendments retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8.

The Company’s liabilities were not impacted by the adoption of these amendments.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting and reporting standards
that are not yet effective

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the Companies
Act, 2017 and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2025:

- Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28) amend accounting treatment on loss of control of business or assets. The amendments also
introduce new accounting for less frequent transaction that involves neither cost nor full step-up of certain
retained interests in assets that are not businesses. The effective date for these changes has been deferred
indefinitely until the completion of a broader review. Early adoption continues to be permitted.

- Lack of Exchangeability (amendments to IAS 21) clarify:

- when a currency is exchangeable into another currency; and
- how a company estimates a spot rate when a currency lacks exchangeability.

Further, companies will need to provide new disclosures to help users assess the impact of using an
estimated exchange rate on the financial statements. These disclosures might include:

- the nature and financial impacts of the currency not being exchangeable;
- the spot exchange rate used;
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- the estimation process; and
- risks to the company because the currency is not exchangeable.

The amendments apply for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025. Earlier
application is permitted.

- Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting Standards - Amendments to:

- IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards;

- IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and it's accompanying Guidance on implementing IFRS;
- IFRS 9 Financial Instruments;

- IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements; and

- IAS 7 Statement of Cash flows.

The amendments to IFRS 9 address:

- a conflict between IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers over the initial measurement
of trade receivables:
Under IFRS 15, a trade receivable may be recognized at an amount that differs from the transaction price -
e.g. when the transaction price is variable. Conversely, IFRS 9 requires that companies initially measure trade
receivables without a significant financing component at the transaction price. The IASB has amended IFRS
9 to require companies to initially measure a trade receivable without a significant financing component at
the amount determined by applying IFRS 15; and

- howalessee accounts for the derecognition of a lease liability under paragraph 23 of IFRS 9:

When lease liabilities are derecognized under IFRS 9, the difference between the carrying amount and the
consideration paid is recognized in profit or loss.

The amendment on trade receivables may require some companies to change their accounting policy.

The amendments apply for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026.
Earlierapplication is permitted.

The amendment on derecognition of lease liabilities applies only to lease liabilities extinguished on or after
the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the amendment is first applied.

The above standards, interpretations and amendments are not likely to have an impact on the Company's
financial statements.

MEASUREMENT BASIS

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as otherwise stated
in the respective policy notes.

These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees which is the functional currency of the Company
and figures are rounded off to the nearest thousands of Rupees, except where disclosed otherwise.

These financial statements have been prepared under accrual basis of accounting except for statement of cash
flows.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The material accounting policies set out below have been consistently applied to all periods presented in these
financial statements.



4.1

4.2

4.2.1

4.3

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment of each class is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any, except for free hold land and capital work in progress which are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method to charge off their cost
excluding residual value, if not insignificant, over their estimated useful lives.

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. Major
renewals and improvements are capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Gains and losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less identified impairment loss, if any. It consists of all expenditures
and advances connected with specific assets incurred and made during installations and construction period.
These are transferred to relevant property, plant and equipment as and when assets are available for use.

Leases

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease at inception of the contract. This assessment
involves the exercise of judgement about whether it depends on a specified asset, whether the Company
obtains substantially all the economic benefits from the use of that asset, and whether the Company has the
right to direct the use of the asset.

The Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date,
except for short term leases of 12 months or less and leases of low value items, which are expensed in the
statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payment that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company uses the incremental borrowing rate applicable in the market for such leases.

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method and
remeasured (with a corresponding adjustment to the related ROU asset) when there is a change in future lease
payments in case of renegotiation, changes of an index or rate or in case of reassessment of options.

At inception, the ROU asset comprises the initial lease liability, initial direct costs and the obligations to
refurbish the asset, less any incentives granted by the lessors. The ROU asset is depreciated over the shorter of
the lease term or the useful life of the underlying asset. The ROU asset is subject to testing for impairment if
there is an indicator for impairment, as for owned assets.

ljarah

In ijarah transactions' significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor. Islamic
Financial Accounting Standard 2 - 'ljarah’ requires the recognition of ‘ujrah payments’ (lease rentals) against ijarah
financing as an expense in the statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the ijarah term.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets having definite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment,

if any. Amortization is calculated using the straight line method to charge off their cost over their estimated
useful lives. Intangible assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
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4.4

4.41

4.4.2

4.4.3

4.5

4.6

indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

The useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether events and
circumstances continue to support an indefinite useful life assessment for the asset.

Impairment testing involves a number of judgemental areas which are subject to inherent significant
uncertainty, including the preparation of cash flow forecasts for periods that are beyond the normal
requirements of management reporting and the assessment of the discount rate appropriate to the business.
The detailed assumptions underlying impairment testing of goodwill and intangibles with indefinite lives are
given in note 8 to these financial statements.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, as the case may be.

Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxability of certain income streams of the Company under Normal
tax regime at the applicable tax rates, after taking into account tax credits and tax rebates available, if any.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the statement of financial position.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences are expected to
reverse, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax is
charged or credited to statement of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in statement of
comprehensive income.

Levies - Final Tax

In accordance with the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, computation of final taxes is not based on taxable income.
Therefore, as per IAS 12 Application Guidance on Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes issued by the
ICAP, these fall within the scope of IFRIC 21 / IAS 37 and accordingly have been classified as levy in these
financial statements.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the
amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount
as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Staff retirement benefits

The Company operates various post-employment schemes, including both defined benefit and defined
contribution plans.



4.6.1

4.6.2

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions into a separate entity.
The Company has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.
The contributions are recognized as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

i) Provident fund

The Company operates an approved contributory provident fund for all employees. Equal monthly contributions
are made, both by the Company and the employees, to the fund at the rate of 6% per annum of the base salary of
management employees and 14% of base salary plus cost of living allowance in respect of unionized staff
respectively.

ii) DC Pension Fund

The Company has established a defined contribution plan - DC Pension Fund for the following management
employees:

a) permanent employees who joined on or after April 1, 2012; and

b) permanent employees who joined on or before March 31, 2012 and opted for DC Pension plan in lieu
of future benefits under the existing pension and management gratuity.

Contributions are made by the Company to the plan at the rate of 9% per annum of the base salary.

Defined benefit plans

Defined benefit plans define an amount of pension or gratuity that an employee will receive on or after retirement,
usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation. A defined benefit plan is a
plan that is not a defined contribution plan. The liability recognized in the statement of financial position in respect of
defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligations at the end of the reporting period less the
fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligations are calculated annually by independent actuary using the
projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognized asset is
limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions
in future contributions to the plans.

The present values of the defined benefit obligations are determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds or the market rates on government bond. These are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating to the
terms of the related pension obligation.

The Company operates the funded gratuity scheme for non-management employees of the Company. Contributions
are made on the basis of the actuarial valuation. The latest actuarial valuation was carried out as at December 31,

2024, using the ‘Projected Unit Credit Method'.

The amount arising as a result of remeasurements are recognized in the statement of financial position immediately,
with a charge or credit to other comprehensive income in the periods in which they occur.

Past-service costs are recognized immediately in statement of profit or loss.
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4.6.3

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

Other long-term employee benefits

The Company's net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present
value. Remeasurements are recognized in statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

The Company provides long term service awards for staff completing specified years of service. All full-time permanent
employees are eligible for these awards. Contributions are made on the basis of actuarial valuation. The latest
actuarial valuation was carried out as at December 31, 2024.

Stores and spares

These are valued at weighted average cost less impairment loss, if any, except for items in transit which are stated at
invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon. Cost comprises invoice value and other direct costs but excludes
borrowing costs. Provision is made for obsolete / slow moving items where necessary and is recognized in the
statement of profit or loss.

Stock-in-trade

Stock-in-trade is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method except for those in transit where it represents invoice value and other charges paid thereon. Cost of work in
process and finished goods include cost of raw and packing materials, direct labour and related production overheads.
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less cost necessary to be incurred in
order to make the sale. Provision is made for obsolete / slow moving stocks where necessary and recognized in the
statement of profit or loss.

Trade debts

Trade debts are recognised and carried at original invoice amount (unless they contain significant financing
componentin which case such are recognised at fair value) less an estimated allowance made for doubtful receivables
based on 'Expected Credit Loss' model. Balances considered bad and irrecoverable are written off when identified.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, with banks on current and savings accounts, deposit accounts,
investments with maturities of three months or less and short term finance. Running finances under mark-up
arrangements are shown within short term borrowings. These are measured at amortised cost.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

(i) Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial liability is
initially measured at fair value plus or minus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction price.



@i

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost; fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) - debt investment; FVOCI - equity investment; or fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes its business
model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the
first reporting period following the change in the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL:

- itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debtinvestment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

- itis held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI. This election is made on an
investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL.
This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial liabilities - Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if
itis classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities
at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit
or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss
on derecognition is also recognised in statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition

The Company derecognizes a financial asset or a portion of financial asset when, and only when, the Company loses
control of the contractual rights that comprise the financial asset or a portion of financial assets. While a financial
liability or part of financial liability is derecognized from the statement of financial position when, and only when, it is
extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on
the recognition or derecognition of the financial assets and liabilities is taken to statement of profit or loss or other
comprehensive income.
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(iv) Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

4.12

4.12.1

4.12.2

4.13

4.14

4.15

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only
when there is a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and the Company intends either to settle
on a net basis, or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Impairment

Financial assets

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair value
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets other than inventories, are assessed at each reporting date to ascertain
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is
estimated. An impairment loss is recognized as an expense in the statement of profit or loss for the amount by which
the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair
value less cost to sell and value in use. Value in use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash
flows using a discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risk specific to
the assets. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

A n
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.
Prior impairments of non-financial assets (other than goodwill) are reviewed for possible reversal at each reporting
date.

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid
in future for goods and services.

Provisions

Provisions, if any, are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, itis probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the
amount can be made.

Restructuring cost provisions comprise staff redundancy payments, relocation and dismantling of factory, and are
recognized in the period in which the Company becomes legally or constructively committed to incur.

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares.



4.16

4.17

4.18

4.19

4.20

Foreign currency transactions and translation

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Pakistani Rupees at the exchange rate ruling at the
date of transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into functional currency at the
exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated into functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange
rate at the date of transaction. Foreign currency differences are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the Company satisfies a performance obligation, at a point in time, by
transferring promised goods to the counterparty. Goods are transferred when the counterparty obtains their control
(i.e. either upon shipment or delivery of goods to the counterparty).

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price which is mutually agreed between the Company and the
counterparty, net of returns, amounts collected on behalf of third parties (sales taxes etc.), other than trade discounts,
volume rebates, price promotions to customers/consumers and any other consideration payable to customers
(referred as trade spend). The level of discounts, allowances and promotional rebates are recognized, on estimated
basis using historical experience and the specific terms of the arrangement as a deduction from revenue at the time
that the related sales are recognized or when such incentives are offered to the counterparty. The Company gives
normal credit terms to its customers with no significant financing component

Aliability is recognized for expected discount payable to the counterparties in related to sales made until the end of the
reporting period.

Miscellaneous Income

Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established.

Return on savings accounts and deposit accounts is recognized on time proportion basis, taking effect of the effective
interest rate.

Income from sale of scrap is recorded on delivery of scrap to the customer.

Service income is recognized on accrual basis at rate agreed with counter parties. Miscellaneous income is recognized
on receipt basis.

The grant is recognised in statement of profit or loss, in line with the recognition of interest expense that the grant is
compensating, in accordance with IAS 20.

Exchange gain from currency realization is described in Note 4.16 of these financial statements.

Dividend and appropriations to reserves

Final dividend distributions to the Company's shareholders are recognized as a liability in the financial statements in
the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company's shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, while
the interim dividend distributions are recognized in the period in which the dividends are declared by the Board of
Directors. Appropriations of profit are reflected in the statement of changes in equity in the period in which such
appropriations are approved.

Share based payment

The cost of awarding shares of associated companies to employees is reflected by recording a charge in the
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4.21

4.22

4.23

5.1

statement of profit or loss equivalent to the fair value of shares over the vesting period, corresponding liability
created is reflected in trade and other payables.

The liability (cash-settled) is remeasured at each reporting date and at settlement date based on the fair value
of the equity instruments granted. Any changes in the liability are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Operating segment

The financial statements are prepared on the basis of single reporting segment consistent with the information
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker of the Company.

Government grants

Government grants are assistance by government in the form of transfers of resources to an entity in return for
past or future compliance with certain conditions relating to the operating activities of the entity. Government
refers to government, government agencies and similar bodies whether local, national or international.

The Company recognizes government grants when there is reasonable assurance that grants will be received
and the Company will be able to comply with conditions associated with grants.

Government grants related to assets, including non-monetary grants at fair value, shall be presented in the
statement of financial position either by setting up the grant as deferred income or by deducting the grant in
arriving at the carrying amount of the asset.

Government grants shall be recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the
entity recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of interest is treated as a government grant. The loan
shall be recognised and measured in accordance with IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. The benefit of the
below-market rate of interest shall be measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of the loan
determined in accordance with IFRS 9 and the proceeds received.

Unclaimed Dividend

The Company recognizes unclaimed dividend which was declared and remained unclaimed by the shareholder
from the date it was due and payable.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of these financial statements, in conformity with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan, management has made judgment and estimates that affects the application of the
Company's accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and are based on historical
experience including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Revision in estimates are recognised prospectively.

Information about estimates and judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effects on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are as follows:

Income taxes

The Company takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the taxation authorities.



5.2

53

54

5.5

5.6

5.7

Instances where the Company's views differ from the views taken by the income tax department at the
assessment stage and where the Company considers that its view on items of material nature is in accordance
with law, the amounts are shown as contingencies.

The Company also regularly reviews the trend of proportion of incomes between Presumptive Tax Regime
income and Normal Tax Regime income and the change in proportions, if significant, is accounted for in the
year of change.

Defined benefit plans

The Company has adopted certain actuarial assumptions as disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements for
valuation of present value of defined benefit obligations and fair value of plan assets, based on actuarial
advice.

Provisions

Provisions are considered, among others, for legal matters, disputed indirect taxes, employee termination cost
and restructuring where a legal or constructive obligation exists at the reporting date and reliable estimate can
be made of the likely outcome. The nature of these costs is such that judgment is involved in estimating the
timing and amount of cash flows.

Significant assumptions are also involved while calculating the provisions which are adjustments to the
carrying amount of the assets such as impairment of assets, provision for obsolescence of stock in trade / stores

and spares and allowance for impairment of trade debts.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Company reviews the rate of depreciation / amortization, useful life, residual value and value of assets for
possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change in the estimates in future years might affect the carrying
amounts of the respective items of property, plant and equipment / intangible assets with a corresponding
effect on the depreciation / amortization charge and impairment.

Stores and spares

The Company continuously reviews its inventory for existence of any items which may have become obsolete.
These estimates are based on historical experience and are continuously reviewed and the cost of such stores
and spares is fully provided for.

Stock-in-trade

Stock of raw materials and finished goods are valued at lower of weighted average cost and net realizable
value.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling prices in the ordinary course of business less costs
necessarily to be incurred in order to make the sale.

Trade debts

These are adjusted for loss allowances that are measured at amount equal to lifetime expected credit loss that
result from all possible default events over expected life of the financial asset.
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5.9

5.10

5.8 Leases

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and
an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset to the site
on which it is located less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight line method from the commencement
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The
estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of fixed assets. In
addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted to certain
remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental
borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Rebate accrual

Accrual for rebate is recognized as deduction from revenue based on terms of the arrangements with the
customer and is included in trade and other payables.

Levies

The Company takes into account the current income tax law, legislations and decisions taken by the taxation
authorities for determination of levies. These include determining the specific obligating event that triggers levy
recognition based on the relevant legislation, estimating the amount payable by considering applicable rates,
and deciding the appropriate timing for recognizing the levy liability. These estimates and judgements are
periodically reviewed and updated as necessary.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Note 2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)
Operating fixed assets 6.1 7,676,293 3,783,542
Capital work in progress - at cost 6.3 1,665,627 4,081,938
9,341,920 7,865,480




6.1 Operating fixed assets

Freehold Buildingon Leasehold Plantand Electrical, Furniture Motor Total
land freehold improvements machinery  mechanical andfittings vehicles
land and office
equipment
< (Rupees in thousand) »
Netcarryingvaluebasis
Yearended December 31,2024
Opening Net Book Value (NBV) 8,179 1,177,989 - 2,486,616 83,775 26,983 - 3,783,542
Additions (at cost) - 895,234 - 3,529,333 17,009 21,424 - 4,463,000
Disposals
Cost - (507) - (169,689) (5,979) (3.284) - (179,459)
Accumulated depreciation - 507 - 169,599 5,979 3,284 - 179,369
Disposals (NBV) - - - (90) - - - (90)
Depreciation charge (note 6.2) - (47,999) - (383,848) (8,864) (4,251) - (444,962)
Provision for fixed assets - (6,403) - (111,914) (2,019) (4,861) - (125,197)
Closing NBV 8,179 2,018,821 - 5,520,097 89,901 39,295 " 7,676,293
Gross carrying value basis
At December 31, 2024
Cost 8,179 2,429,149 14,918 7,930,032 199,356 72,643 38 10,654,315
Provision for fixed assets - (46,398) - (260,243) (6,751) (7,454) - (320,846)
Accumulated depreciation - (363,930) (14,918)  (2,149,692) (102,704) (25,894) (38) (2,657,156)
Closing NBV 8,179 2,018,821 - 5,520,097 89,901 39,295 - 7,676,293
<
N
o
[y
Netcarrying valuebasis £
o
Yearended December 31,2023 %
Opening Net Book Value (NBV) 8,179 1,067,482 - 2,436,982 91,909 28,907 - 3,633,459 E
[
Additions (at cost) - 148,899 - 361,830 422 1,229 - 512,380 g
<
Depreciation charge (note 6.2) - (38,392) - (288,974) (8,042) (3,153) - (338,561) )
Provision for fixed assets - - - (23,222) (514) - - (23,736) :?3
£
Closing NBV 8,179 1,177,989 - 2,486,616 83,775 26,983 - 3,783,542 d
©
o
o
. 03 L
Gross carrying value basis c
AtDecember31,2023 B
%]
Cost 8,179 1,534,422 14,918 4,570,388 188,326 54,503 38 6,370,774 éé
.. ) o
Provision for fixed assets - (39,995) - (148,329) (4,732) (2,593) - (195,649)
Accumulated depreciation - (316438)  (14,918)  (1,935443) (99,819) (24,927) (38)  (2,391,583) 3
Closing NBV 8,179 1,177,989 - 2,486,616 83,775 26,983 - 3,783,542 §
—.———————— 5 3 3 8 8§ — [ ]
Depreciation rate (%) per annum - 25 2.5 7t033.33 7to25 7 20to 25 ’

o
o



6.2 Thedepreciation charge for the year has been allocated

as follows: Note 2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)
Cost of sales 27 434,807 328,406
Distribution costs 28 6,770 6,770
Administrative expenses 29 3,385 3,385
444,962 338,561
6.3 Capitalworkinprogress-at cost
Plant and machinery 1,255,743 3,563,490
Civil works 115,504 224,068
Advances to suppliers 294,380 294,380
1,665,627 4,081,938
6.4  Particulars ofimmovable asset of the Company are as follows
Location Address Usage of immovable Covered
property area (sq. ft)
Foods Factory 52-Km, Multan Road Lahore, Manufacturing Plant 717,300 sq. feet
Parna Plant Near Bhai Pheru
7. LEASES
Note f— Plant and
< 7.1  Right-of-use asset Building Machinery Total
<]
::. ———— (RupeesinThousand) —
2 As at December 31, 2023 3,575 . 3,575
[
o Depreciation expense 7.2 (3,575) - (3,575)
g As at December 31, 2024 - - -
c
[
<
Re]
]
b=
£ 7.2  The depreciation charge for the year pertaining to right-of-use-asset is as follows:
-l
§ Note 2024 2023
9 (Rupees in thousand)
c
O
0
% Distribution costs 28 3,575 21,454
[ 3,575 21,454
L] §

o
-



10.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Gross carrying value basis

Cost

- Goodwill

- Agreement in restraint of trade
- Trademark

Accumulated impairment
Net book value

2024 2023

(Rupeesin thousand)
94,578 94,578
139,661 139,661
20,000 20,000
254,239 254,239
(172,602) (172,602)
81,637 81,637

The above represents amount paid for the acquisition of Glaxose-D in 1999 to Glaxo Wellcome Pakistan Limited.

The management has assessed the useful life of the intangible as indefinite, since it is expected that the
underlying brand, Glaxose-D, will operate in the market for an indefinite period of time.

For impairment testing, the estimated recoverable amount has been determined using the discounted cash
flows for a period of five years using growth rate of 8.7%. Key assumptions used in estimation of recoverable
amount includes profit forecasts (based on both internal and external market information and past

performance) and discount rate.

The discount rate used is 13% (2023: 15%), a pre-tax measure based on government bonds rate. The valuation
exceeds the carrying amount sufficiently such that a reasonably possible change to key assumptions is unlikely

to result in an impairment of Glaxose-D.

STORES AND SPARES

Stores

Spares

Provision for obsolescence

STOCK-IN-TRADE

Raw and packing materials (including in transit
Rs. 57.80 million; 2023: Rs. 82.14 million)
Provision for obsolescence

Work in process

Finished goods
Provision for obsolescence

Note

10.2

10.2

2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)
67,402 64,286
403,213 246,257
470,615 310,543
(25,987) (8.684)
444,628 301,859
2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)
1,947,520 2,585,813
(168,682) (128,237)
1,778,838 2,457,576
55,696 44,380
1,242,851 1,744,113
(32,676) (31,114)
1,210,175 1,712,999
3,044,709 4,214,955
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10.1 Stockin trade includes Rs. 1,813.33 million (2023: Rs. 1,859.23 million) held with third parties.

10.2 The Company made a provision of Rs. 213.27 million (2023: Rs. 116.65 million) for obsolescence and has written
off inventory of Rs. 171.26 million (2023: Rs. 74.17 million) by utilizing the provision during the year.

Note 2024 2023

11. TRADE DEBTS - net (Rupees inthousand)
Trade debts 1,026,944 1,183,568
Allowance for impairment 111 (54,003) (64,581)
972,941 1,118,987

11.1 The Company has reversed a provision of Rs. 10.6 million (2023 Charge: Rs. 55.2 million) while there were no
write-offs (2023: Rs. 76.1 million) during the year.

2024 2023

12. LOANS AND ADVANCES (Rupees in thousand)
Considered good 32,973 68.288
Advances to suppliers 32'973 681288

Note 2024 2023

13. TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS (Rupees in thousand)
Trade deposits 131 36,791 48,180
Prepayments 13.2 79,995 72,936
116,786 121,116

13.1 This majorly consists of deposits with custom authorities.

13.2 This majorly consists of media bulk discount on airing TV commercials and prepaid insurance.

14. OTHERRECEIVABLES Note 2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 141 14,562 67,603
Others 14.2 106,567 87,622
121,129 155,225

14.1 Workers' Profits Participation Fund

Balance as at January 1 67,603 35,890
Allocation for the year (348,424) (487,186)

(280,821) (451,296)
Payments during the year 295,383 518,899
Balance as at December 31 14,562 67,603




14.2 This majorly consists of receivables from material vendors in respect of stock rejection amounting to Rs. 38
million (2023: Rs. 2 million), scrap sales receivable amounting to Rs. 18 million (2023: Rs. 18 million) and

15.

15.1

receivable from retirement funds amounting to Rs. 16 million (2023: Rs. 12 million).

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS 2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)
At fair value through profit or loss 15.1 6,641,976 3,809,898
Investments - fair value through profit or loss:
At Purchased / Units reinvested At
December (Redeemed) duringtheyear = December
31,2023 during theyear 31,2024
Name of fund (Unitsin thousand)
UBL Liquidity Plus Fund 2,778 2,550 290 5,618
HBL Cash Fund 6,322 1,932 581 8,835
MCB Cash Optimizer 4,674 2,151 431 7,256
NBP Money Market Fund 55,823 38,596 5,411 99,830
Meezan Cash Fund 17,794 (20,618) 2,824 -
ABL Cash Fund 3,658 38,537 1,405 43,601
Pakistan Cash Management Fund - 1,981 133 2,114
HBL Money Market Fund 1,948 2,107 587 4,642
NBP Cash Plan Il 36,540 (17,309) 7,420 26,651
UBL Cash Fund 1,566 1,989 729 4,284
Alhamra Islamic Money Market Fund 1,535 (1,608) 314 241
Al Habib Money Market - 4,500 33 4,533 <
Al Habib Cash Fund - 3,399 66 3,465 S
NIT Money Market - 35,596 575 36,171 ko
132,638 93,803 20,799 247,240 §
(-3
'g'
Costat Fairvalue at Unrealised gain at c
December 31, December 31, December 31, 5
2024 2024 2024 l
(Unitsin thousand) :qo_.;
UBL liquidity plus fund 569,693 620,142 50,449 g
HBL cash fund 898,527 991,526 92,999 §
MCB Cash optimizer 738,321 807,803 69,482 9
NBP MMF 997,459 1,090,079 92,620 g
ABL Funds 446,028 486,700 40,672 7
Pakistan Cash Management Fund 106,701 106,701 - §
HBL Money Market Fund 511,213 521,453 10,240
NBP Cash Plan Il 266,912 266,512 (400) 3
UBL Cash Fund 445,806 466,934 21,128
Alhamra Islamic Money Market Fund 23,937 23,937 -
Al Habib Money Market 453,252 492,521 39,269 N
Al Habib Cash Fund 350,995 383,460 32,465
NIT Money Market 350,707 384,208 33,501 D
6,159,551 6,641,976 482,425

(o))
B
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16. CASH AND BANK BALANCES Note 2024 2023

(Rupees in thousand)
With banks on:
- savings accounts 16.1 3,383,236 9,018,927
- current accounts 1,132,058 629,808
4,515,294 9,648,735
Cash in hand 26 82
4,515,320 9,648,817

16.1 Savings accounts carry markup at rates ranging from 11.5% to 20.5% per annum (2023: 15.5% to 20.5% per annum).

17. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised share capital

2024 2023 2024 2023
(Number of shares) (Rupees in thousand)
20,000,000 20,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 200,000 200,000

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each allotted:

1,451,659 1,451,659 for consideration paid in cash 14,516 14,516

24,196 24,196 for consideration other than cash 242 242
4,894,095 4,894,095 as bonus shares 48,941 48,941
6,369,950 6,369,950 63,699 63,699

17.1 Asat December 31, 2024, Conopco Inc. USA, subsidiary of Unilever P.L.C., held 4.88 million (2023: 4.88 million) ordinary
shares of Rs. 10 each.

17.2  Allshares carry equal voting rights.

18. RESERVES

Note 2024 2023

Capitalreserves (Rupees in thousand)
- Share premium 18.1 1,296,499 1,296,499
- Special 628 628
1,297,127 1,297,127

Revenuereserves

- General 138 138
- Unappropriated profit 12,019,459 14,298,725
12,019,597 14,298,863
13,316,724 15,595,990




18.1

19.

191

19.2

19.3

19.4

19.5

19.6

This reserve can be utilized by the Company only for the purpose specified in section 81 of the Companies Act, 2017.

STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS

As stated in note 4.6, the Company operates a retirement benefit plan (The Plan) namely approved funded defined
benefit gratuity scheme for all non-management employees subject to minimum service of prescribed period in
the respective trust deed. The latest actuarial valuation was carried out as at December 31, 2024.

Plan assets held in trust are governed by local regulations which mainly includes Trust Act, 1882, Companies Act,
2017, Income Tax Rules, 2002, Employees Contributory Funds (Investment in Listed Securities) Regulations, 2018
and Rules under the Trust deed of the Plan. Responsibility for governance of the Plan, including investment
decisions and contribution schedules, lies with the Board of Trustees. The Company appoints the trustees and all
trustees are employees of the Company.

The latest actuarial valuation of the Fund as at December 31, 2024 was carried out using the 'Projected Unit Credit
Method'. Details of the Fund as per the actuarial valuation are as follows:

Note 2024 2023
Reconciliation (Rupees in thousand)
Present value of defined benefit obligation at December 31 19.5 (131,365) (119,994)
Fair value of plan assets at December 31 19.6 66,702 52,418
Deficit (64,663) (67,576)
Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation
Balances as at January 1 119,994 99,708
Benefits paid by the plan (965) (5,138)
Current service costs 10,523 8,578
Interest cost 17,927 13,114
Remeasurement on obligation (16,114) 3,732
Balance as at December 31 131,365 119,994
2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)
Movement in the fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at January 1 52,418 46,558
Benefits paid by the plan (965) (5,138)
Interest income 7,790 6,471
Remeasurement on plan assets 7,459 4,527
Fair value of plan assets at December 31 66,702 52,418
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19.7

19.8

19.9

19.10

19.11

19.12

19.13

2024 2023

Note .

(Rupees in thousand)
Expense recognized in statement of profit or loss
Current service costs 19.5 10,523 8,578
Net interest cost 19.5&19.6 10,137 6,643

20,660 15,221
Remeasurements recognized in Other Comprehensive Income
Remeasurement on obligation 19.5 (16,114) 3,732
Remeasurement on plan assets 19.6 (7,459) (4,527)
Remeasurements (23,573) (795)
Net recognized liability - gratuity
Net liability at January 1 67,576 53,150
Charge for the year 19.7 20,660 15,221
Remeasurements recognized in Other comprehensive income 19.8 (23,573) (795)
Net recognized liability as at December 31 64,663 67,576
Plan assets comprises of following:
Government bonds 25,397 20,054
National savings certificates 6,966 9,817
Shares 19,766 14,970
Cash at bank 14,573 13,473
Due to the Company - (5,896)
Total as at December 31 66,702 52,418
Actuarial assumptions
Discount rate at 31 December 12.00% 15.00%
Future salary increases 11.50% 13.00%

Mortality was assumed to be 70% of the EFU(61-66) Table.

In case of the funded plan, the Company ensures that the investment positions are managed within an asset-liability
matching (ALM) framework that has been developed to achieve long-term investments that are in line with the
obligations under the Retirement benefit plan. Within this framework, the Company’s ALM objective is to match assets
to the retirement benefit obligations by investing in long-term fixed interest securities with maturities that match the
benefit payments as they fall due and in the appropriate currency. The Company actively monitors how the duration
and the expected yield of the investments are matching the expected cash outflows arising from the Retirement benefit
plan obligations. The Company has not changed the processes used to manage its risks from previous periods. The
Company does not use derivatives to manage its risk. Investments are well diversified, such that the failure of any single
investment would not have a material impact on the overall level of assets. A large portion of assets in 2024 consists of
Government bonds, National Savings shares and cash at bank. The Company believes that national saving and shares
offer the best returns over the long term with an acceptable level of risk.



19.14 The expected return on plan assets was determined by considering the expected returns available on the assets
underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed interest investments are based on gross
redemption yields as at the reporting date.

The Company's contribution to the gratuity fund in 2025 is expected to amount to Rs. 30.79 million.

The actuary conducts separate valuations for calculating contribution rates and the Company contributes to the
gratuity funds according to the actuary's advice. Expense of the defined benefit plan is calculated by the actuary.

Figures in this note are based on the latest actuarial valuation carried out as at December 31, 2024.

19.15 Sensitivity analysis for actuarial assumptions

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Changein Increasein Decreasein
assumption assumption assumption

(Percentage) (Rupees in thousand)
Discount rate at 31st December 2024 1.00% (13,753) 16,119
Future salary increases 1.00% 16,277 (14,102)
Discount rate at 31st December 2023 1.00% (13,329) 15,645
Future salary increases 1.00% 15,794 (13,658)

There is no significant change in the obligation if life expectancy increases by 1 year.

TThe sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In
practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the
sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of
the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period)
has been applied as when calculating the pension liability recognized within the statement of financial position.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the
previous period.

19.16 The expected return on plan assets is based on the market expectations and depends upon the asset portfolio of
the Fund, at the beginning of the period, for returns over the entire life of related obligation.

19.17 The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 12.9 years.

Expected maturity analysis of undiscounted retirement benefit plans.

Less than Between Between Over Total
ayear 1-2years 2-5years S5years
< (Rupees in thousand) >
At December 31, 2024
Retirement benefit plans 4,449 1,867 14,096 91,939 112,351
At December 31,2023
Retirement benefit plans 795 4,464 21,356 86,167 112,782
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19.18 The Company also operates two defined contribution plans which receives fixed contributions. The expense
recognized in the current year in relation to these contributions was Rs. 19.82 million (2023: Rs. 16.42 million).

20. LONG TERM BORROWINGS - secured
20.1 Longterm borrowings

Finance facility - solar
Current portion of finance facility - solar

Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (TERF)
Current portion of TERF

Deferred income - government grant

Note

20.1.1

20.1.2

20.2

2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)
96,888 108,999
(12,111) (12,111)
84,777 96,888
828,491 890,743
(112,496) (62,252)
715,995 828,491
(304,683) (367,513)
411,312 460,978
496,089 557,866

20.1.1 During the year 2020, the Company entered into a long term borrowing arrangement with a commercial bank for
installation of solar panels under State Bank of Pakistan’s Refinancing Scheme for Renewable energy. The total
facility is available for twelve years ending in 2032 and amounts to Rs. 149 million. The loan carries mark-up at the

rate of 3.65% per annum.

Opening
Repayment
Closing

Opening
Disbursements

Repayment
Closing

()
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2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)
108,999 121,110
(12,111) (12,111)
96,888 108,999

20.1.2 During the year 2021, the Company also entered into a long term borrowing arrangement with commercial banks
under State Bank of Pakistan’s Temporary Economic Refinance Facility amounting to Rs. 900 million which has
been completely utilized as at year end. This loan carries a concessional mark-up rate of 2.3% per annum and is
repayable in 32 quarterly installments with a 2 year grace period commencing from first disbursement.

2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)
890,743 653,854

- 246,146
890,743 900,000
(62,252) (9,257)
828,491 890,743




20.1.3 Under the terms of Loan agreement, the Company is required to comply with the following financial
convenants on an annual basis:

- Minumum Debt Service Coverage Ratio (DSCR) of 5.0x to be maintained
- Maximum gearing of 0.50x to be maintained
- No significant change in ownership of the obligors without prior consent of UBL.

The Company has remained in compliance with these covenants throughout the reporting period. As of December
31, 2024, the DSCR stood at 77.5x, while the Gearing stood at 0.045x.

Further, there are no indications that Company would have difficulties in complying with the covenants as at 31
December 2025.

20.2 Deferredincome-government grant

The TERF scheme qualifies for the recognition criteria of a Government Grant as per IAS 20 Accounting for
Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance. As a result, the liability has been broken down into
two components. First one being recognition of a financial liability in accordance with IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
which has been measured at fair value, that is, present value of future cashflows at the prevailing market rate.
Second component is the recognition of deferred income as a liability. This is the difference between the fair value
of the financing facility and loan proceeds received from the bank.

2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)
Deferred income - government grant 304,683 367,513
Current portion of deferred income - government grant (63,121) (62,830)
241,562 304,683
21. DEFERRED TAXATION 2024 2023 §
(Rupees in thousand) o
Taxable temporary differences arising in respect of: §_
- accelerated tax depreciation allowance 1,019,784 577,703 &’
- depreciation of right-of-use asset - 1,350 -g'
- amortization of intangible assets 31,284 30,833 E
1,051,068 609,886 <.
Deductible temporary differences arising in respect of: 8
- provision for stock in trade and stores and spares (87,121) (63,465) E
- allowance for impairment of trade debts (21,061) (25,187) |
- provision for staff retirement benefits (1,606) (10,800) §
- others (1,013) (1,011) 9
(110,801) (100,463) §
940,267 509,423 <
g
é
>

N
o
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22.

221

22.2

223

224

225

Note 2024 2023

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Rupees in thousand)
Trade creditors 2,821,427 3,756,090
Bills payable 221 1,313,041 1,418,486
Accrued liabilities 222 3,790,553 3,685,412
Royalty and technology fee 28.1 3,198,896 3,196,059
Contract liabilities 223 246,089 143,780
Withholding tax 122,967 128,250
Workers' Welfare Fund 224 245,308 226,971
Payable in respect of Employee Retirement Benefit 7,518 5,122
Liability for share-based compensation 225 24,044 26,932
Others 225 225

11,770,068 12,587,327

Bills payable represents inland letters of credit under vendor financing arrangements.
Accrued liabilities majorly consists of accruals related to trade spend, material cost and advertisement and
promotion.

Contract liabilities amounting to Rs 109.45 million as of the beginning of the year have been recognized as revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Rs. 98.38 million).

Note 2024 2023

Workers’' Welfare Fund (Rupees in thousand)

Balance as at January 1 (226,971) (184,856)
Charge for the year 30 (168,208) (197,234)

(395,179) (382,090)
Payment during the year 150,000 166,829
Others (129) (11,710)
Balance as at December 31 (245,308) (226,971)

Share based compensation plans

As at December 31, 2024, the Company had share-based compensation plans in the form of performance shares.
Performance Share Plan (PSP) has been discontinued effective December 31, 2023. The new award is Annual Share
Plan (ASP) where eligible employees receive share awards based on impact, leadership, and future potential, with

higher awards for growth potential, key skills, and performance. The awards of the plan vest over a 3 year period

The performance conditions of ASP are proportionate to business winning share, free cash flow, return on invested
capital and sustainability progress index.

In addition to above, 'buy 3 get 1 free share' plan gives eligible employees an opportunity to invest in Unilever PLC
shares. After a holding period of 3 years, the Company will award 1 free share, for every 3 shares bought.

A summary of the status of the Share Plans as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and changes during the years ended
on these dates is presented below:

2024 2023

(Rupees in thousand)
Outstanding at January 1 1,890 1,740
Awarded 20 502
Vested (717) (352)
Outstanding at December 31 1,263 1,890
Share price
Unilever PLC £45.48 £38.00



22.6

23.

231

24.

25.

25.1

25.2

As per the terms of the schemes, the Company has to pay Unilever PLC for awarding of their shares to the eligible
employees. Therefore, the Company has treated these share-based plans as cash settled in view of obligation of
the Company.

Amounts due to related parties included in trade and other payables are as follows:

2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)
Holding company 164,459 219,859
Other related parties 4,184,016 5,202,755
4,348,475 5,422,614
PROVISIONS
Note 2024 2023

(Rupeesin thousand)

Sindh Infrastructure Cess 23.1 185,184 158,294

Sindh Infrastructure Cess

Balance as at January 1 158,294 123,861
Charge for the year 26,890 34,433
Balance as at December 31 185,184 158,294
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Running finance under mark-up arrangements
The facilities for running finance available from various banks amount to Rs. 3.005 billion (2023: Rs. 3.005 billion).
The rates of mark-up range between 1-month KIBOR - 0.3% to 3-month KIBOR + 0.5% per annum (2023: 1-month

KIBOR - 0.3% to 3-month KIBOR + 0.5% per annum).

The arrangements are secured by way of hypothecation over the Company's current assets amounting to Rs. 4.071
billion (2023: Rs. 4.071 billion).

The facilities for opening letters of credit and guarantees as at December 31, 2024 amounted to Rs. 15.6 billion
(2023: Rs. 15.6 billion) of which the amount utilized at year end was Rs. 1.968 billion (2023: Rs. 2.185 billion).

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingency

There were no contingencies as at December 31, 2024 and 2023.

Commitments

Aggregate commitments outstanding for capital expenditure as at December 31, 2024 amounted to Rs. 205.75
million (2023: Rs. 578.73 million).
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SALES - net

Gross sales
Sales tax

Returns, rebates and allowances

The Company analyses its net revenue by the following product groups:

Products used by entities

Products used by end consumers

2024

2023

(Rupees in thousand)

46,513,446 47,061,264
(6,574,759) (6,614,787)
39,938,687 40,446,477
(6,226,638) (5,859,745)
33,712,049 34,586,732
2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)
6,339,758 5,704,548
27,372,291 28,882,184
33,712,049 34,586,732

Revenue from one customer approximates 10.17% (2023: 10.02%) of the total revenue of the Company.

This includes export sales amounting to Rs. 1,379 million (2023: Rs 1,277 million).

COST OF SALES

Raw and packing materials consumed
Third party manufacturing charges

Staff costs

Utilities

Depreciation

Repairs and maintenance
Provision for fixed assets
Rent, rates and taxes
Travelling and entertainment
Insurance

Stationery and office expenses
Other expenses

Technology charges

Opening work in process
Closing work in process
Cost of goods manufactured

Opening stock of finished goods

Purchase of finished goods
Closing stock of finished goods

Note

6.2
271

2024

2023

(Rupeesin thousand)

16,749,558 17,114,648
330,067 211,958
1,518,493 1,733,574
428,636 353,835
434,807 328,406
150,169 165,026
125,197 23,736
2,214 2,918
21,390 39,459
43,389 33,854
13,379 18,439
80,536 120,652
35,924 50,592
19,933,759 20,197,097
44,380 36,976
(55,696) (44,380)
19,922,443 20,189,693
1,712,999 1,108,744
306,757 192,457
(1,210,175) (1,712,999)
20,732,024 19,777,895

This includes an amount of Rs. 135.28 million (2023: Rs. 116.36 million) in respect of stores and spares consumed

during the year.



28.

28.1

28.2

29.

29.1

30.

DISTRIBUTION COSTS

Staff costs

Advertisement and sales promotion
Outward freight and handling
Royalty, technology fee and related duties
Travelling and entertainment

Rent, rates and taxes

Depreciation

Vehicle running expense

Repairs and maintenance
Stationary and office expenses
Technology charges

Other expenses

Note 2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)

679,544 674,002

1,204,328 1,915,818

713,199 887,152

28.1 1,503,423 1,522,580
48,025 53,273

28.2 34,633 53,193
6.2 6,770 6.770
40,524 40,907

9,291 9,285

2,158 4,222

29,564 5,140

42,723 35,203

4,314,182 5,207,545

This includes an amount payable to Conopco Inc. (Holding Company) and Unilever IP Holdings B.V. (Associated
Company). These contracts are duly registered with Standard Chartered Bank for repatriation.

This includes depreciation for rights-of-use asset in relation with rental contracts (note 7.2).

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Staff costs
Depreciation

Travelling and entertainment
Auditors' remuneration
Allowance for impairment of trade debts

Legal and professional charges
Other expenses

Rent, rates & taxes
Technology charges

Auditors’ remuneration
Annual audit fee
Half yearly review

Certifications
Out of pocket expenses

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Workers' Profits Participation Fund
Workers' Welfare Fund

Note 2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)

384,406 425,736
6.2 3,385 3,385
26,774 23,126
291 9,892 6,385
- 55,176
44,985 52,411
71,304 74,384
148,224 111,359
68,230 130,312
757,200 882,274
4,452 1,300
1,100 1,000
3,960 3,600
380 485
9,892 6,385
14.1 348,424 487,186
224 168,208 197,234
516,632 684,420

UALQQA’W Pakistan Foods Limited - Annual Report 2024

N
N




()
UMQM’W Pakistan Foods Limited - Annual Report 2024

N
0

31.

32.

33.

331

33.2

OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets
Return on savings accounts
Return on short term investments - at amortized cost

Return on short term investments - at fair value through profit or loss

Income from non-financial assets
Scrap sales
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Others

Exchange gain - net

Reversal of impairment of trade debts
Others

FINANCE COSTS

Mark-up on long term borrowings
Mark-up on leases

Exchange loss - net

Bank charges

TAXATION

Current Year

- Current tax

- Deferred tax
Prior Year

- Current tax

- Deferred tax

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit.

Profit before income tax and final taxes

Tax at the applicable tax rate of 39% (2023: 39%)
Tax effect of credits

Tax effect of final tax / reduced rate

Tax effect of prior years

Others

Tax expense for the year

2024

2023

(Rupees in thousand)

1,255,847 934,958
- 438,823
1,094,973 732,003
2,350,820 2,105,784
372,588 245,304
10,010 -
382,598 245,304
3,574 -
10,578 -
37,432 86,875
2,785,002 2,437,963
22,992 23,562
- 293
- 91,321
12,089 4,285
35,081 119,461
2,634,497 345,733
421,651 19,335
2,303 58,243
- 77,059
3,058,451 500,370
10,141,932 10,353,100
3,955,353 4,037,709
(583,702) (3,195,974)
(219,666) (368,158)
2,303 135,302
13,013 191
3,167,301 609,070

The aggregate of final taxes and current tax, amounting to Rs. 3,167.3 million (2023: Rs. 0.6 million) represents tax
liability of the Company calculated under the relevant provisions of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Reconciliation of Current Tax Charge charged as per tax laws for the year, with current tax recognised in the profit

and loss account, is as follows:

Current tax liability for the year as per applicable tax laws

Portion of current tax liability as per tax laws, representing income tax under IAS 12

Portion of current tax computed as per tax laws representing levy

2024 2023
(Rupeesin thousand)
3,167,301 609,070
(3,058,451) (500,370)

(108,850) (108,700)




34.

35.

35.1

iv

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Profit after taxation attributable to ordinary shareholders

Weighted average number of shares in issue during the year

Basic earnings per share

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)

6,974,631 9,744,030

(Numberinthousand)

6,370 6,370

(Rupees)

1,094.92 1,529.68

The related parties comprises of holding company, its group companies, directors and their close family members,

associated undertakings, key management personnel and retirement benefit funds.

The Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions with various related parties. Details of
transactions with related parties, other than those which have been specifically disclosed elsewhere are as follows:

Relationship with Nature of transactions

the Company

Holding company Royalty

Associated companies  Royalty and technology fee

Purchase of goods & property, plant & equipment

Sale of goods

Fee for receiving of services from
related parties

Reimbursement of shared expenses
to related parties

Reimbursement of shared expenses
from related parties
Staff retirement funds Contribution to:

- Defined contribution plans

Settlement on behalf of:
- Defined contribution plans
Key management Salaries and other short-term

personnel employee benefits

2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)
106,666 82,880
1,396,757 1,439,700 <
N
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35.2 The following are the related parties with whom the Company entered into transaction or have arrangement /

agreement in place:

Name of the Related Party Basis of association Aggregate % of
Shareholding
Rafhan Maize Products Co. Limited ~ Associated Company due to 4.26%

common directorship

Unilever Pakistan Limited Associated Company due to N/A
common directorship

35.3 Details of related parties, including those incorporated outside Pakistan, with whom the Company had entered
into transactions or have arrangement / agreement in place are as below:

Name and country of Registered Address Basis of Aggregate % of
Incorporation Association shareholding

Unilever Asia Private Limited 18 Nepal Park Singapore, Associated N/A

(Singapore) 139407 Company

Unilever Bangladesh Limited 51 Kalurghat Heavy Industrial Area, Associated N/A

(Bangladesh) Kalurghat, Chittagong Company

Unilever Lanka Consumer 258 M. Vincent Perera Associated N/A

Limited (Sri Lanka) Mawatha, Colombo 01400, Company
Sri Lanka

Unilever Europe BV Weena 455,3013 AL Associated N/A
Rotterdam, Netherlands Company

Unilever IP Holdings BV Weena 455, 3013 AL Associated N/A
Rotterdam, Netherlands Company

Conopco Inc. 800 Sylvan Avenue Englewood Holding 76.55%
Cliffs, NJ 07632, United States Company

Unilever PLC Unilever House, 100 Associated N/A
Victoria Embankment, London Company

Unilever Mashreq 5th Floor, North Tower, Galleria 40 Associated N/A

Manufacturing and Trading Business Complex, Sheikh Zayed, Company

6th of October City, Giza

Unilever UK Central Unilever House 100 Victoria Associated N/A
Resources Limited Embankment, London EC4Y 0DY Company
Unilever Europe Business Weena 455,3013 AL Associated N/A
Center BV Rotterdam, Netherlands Company
Unilever Foods & Weena 455, 3013 AL Associated N/A
Refreshments Global BV Rotterdam, Netherlands Company
Unilever PLC, Netherlands PO BOX 544,2400 AM Associated N/A
Alphen aan den Rijn, The Company
Netherlands
Pepsi Lipton International Bosch 67 6331 Hunenberg Associated N/A
Zug, Switzerland Company

[ ]
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Royalty and technology fee are paid in accordance with the agreements duly acknowledged by the State Bank of
Pakistan. The purchase and sale of goods and services from related parties are made on agreed terms and conditions.

Dividend paid to the holding company amounts to Rs. 6.412 billion (2023: Rs. 2.205 billion).
The Company has entered into an agreement with Unilever Pakistan Limited (Associated Company) to share costs
incurred in connection with the efficient business operations as per the agreed terms and conditions. These shared costs

are included within cost of sales, distribution expenses, and administrative expenses in the statement of profit or loss.

The related party outstanding balances as at December 31, 2024 are included in other receivables and trade and
other payables. These are settled in the ordinary course of business.

36. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amounts charged in the financial statements of the year for remuneration including all benefits to
directors, chief executive and executives of the Company are as follows:

Executive Directors Chief Executive Executives
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
¢ (Rupees in thousand) >
Managerial remuneration

and allowances 14,620 15,345 16,010 16,172 60,493 53,665
Retirement benefits 36.1 2,325 1,867 - - 7.217 6,002
Other long term benefits 711 - - - 741 878
Medical expenses 130 133 - - 734 1,856
Other expenses 181 - 1,015 219 43 -
Share based compensation - - - - 10,968 3,482
17,967 17,345 17,025 16,391 80,196 65,883

Number of persons 2 2 1 1 9 9

In addition to this, a lump sum amount of Rs. 11.43 million (2023: Rs. 10.29 million) on account of variable pay has been
accounted for in financial statements for the current year payable in 2024 after verification of target achievement.

Out of the variable pay recognized for 2023 and 2022 following payments were made:

Paid in 2024 Paidin 2023

relating to relating to
2023 2022
(Rupeesin thousand)
Executive Director 4,764 6,882
Chief Executive 8,703 10,503
Executives 8,156 10,350
21,623 27,735

Aggregate amount charged in these financial statements for the year for fee to seven non-executive directors was

Rs. 6.2 million (2023: seven non-executive directors Rs. 7.2 million).

Certain executives of the Company are also provided with the Company maintained cars.

In respect of full time working Director, Chief Executive and Company Secretary, the Company is charged monthly

by an associated undertaking (Unilever Pakistan Limited) on agreed basis.

36.1 Retirement benefits represent amount contributed towards various retirement benefit plans.
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37.

371

38.

39.

40.

40.1

40.2

PLANT CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION 2024 2023

Actual production of the plant in metric tons 45,054 46,377

The capacity of the plant is indeterminable as it is a multiproduct plant capable of producing several
interchangeable products.

PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURE

All investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provision of Section 218 of the
Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
2024 2023
(Number)
Total number of employees at year end 406 234
Average number of employees during the year 320 239
Total number of factory employees as at the reporting date 397 225
Average number of factory employees during the year 311 230

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Financialrisk factors

The Company's activities expose it to variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk management programme focuses on having cost effective
funding as well as manage financial risk to minimize earnings volatility and provide maximum return to shareholders.

Reconciliation of movements of financial liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

Lease Long term Unappropriated

liabilities  Borrowings profit Total

¢ (Rupeesin thousand) >
Balance as at 1 January 2024 - 632,229 14,298,725 14,930,954
Changes from financing cash flows
Repayment of lease liabilities - - - -
Financing obtained during the year - - - -
Repayment of lease liabilities - (74,363) - (74,363)
Dividends paid - - (9,623,457) (9,623,457)
Total changes from financing activities - (74,363) (9,623,457) (9,697,820)
Other changes
Interest expense - - - -
Deferred grant - 62,830 - 62,830
Total other changes - 62,830 - 62,830
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 6,989,011 6,989,011
Dividend not paid during the year - - 355,180 355,180
Balance as at 31 December 2024 - 620,696 12,019,459 12,640,155




Lease Long term Unappropriated

liabilities  Borrowings profit Total

¢ (Rupees in thousand) >
Balance as at 1 January 2023 22,252 512,490 6,153,067 6,687,809
Changes from financing cash flows
Repayment of lease liabilities (22,545) - - (22,545)
Financing obtained during the year - 246,146 - 246,146
Repayment of long term borrowing - (21,368) - (21,368)
Dividends paid - - (2,763,110) (2,763,110)
Total changes from financing activities (22,545) 224,778 (2,763,110) (2,560,877)
Other changes
Interest expense 293 - - 293
Deferred grant - (105,039) - (105,039)
Total other changes 293  (105,039) - (104,746)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 9,744,515 9,744,515
Dividend not paid during the year - - 1,164,253 1,164,253
Balance as at 31 December 2023 - 632,229 14,298,725 14,930,954
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40.3 Financial assets and liabilities by category and their respective maturities

0]

Interest / Mark up bearing Non-interest / Non-mark up bearing Total
Maturity Maturity Sub-total Maturity Maturity after Sub-total
up to one after one up to one one year
year year year
¢ (Rupeesin th d) >

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Amortized cost

Trade debts - - - 972,941 - 972,941 972,941

Long term deposits - - - - 2,980 2,980 2,980

Trade deposits - - - 36,791 - 36,791 36,791

Other receivables - - - 106,567 - 106,567 106,567

Cash and bank balances 3,383,236 - 3,383,236 1,132,084 - 1,132,084 4,515,320
Fair value through profit or loss

Short term investment - - - 6,641,976 - 6,641,976 6,641,976
December 31,2024 3,383,236 - 3,383,236 8,890,359 2,980 8,893,339 12,276,575
December 31,2023 9,018,927 - 9,018,927 5,694,577 2,980 5,697,557 14,716,484
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities- not

measured at fair value

Long term borrowings 124,607 496,089 620,696 - - - 620,696

Trade and other payables 1,313,041 - 1,313,041 9,811,101 - 9,811,101 11,124,142

Unpaid dividend - - - 657,741 - 657,741 657,741

Unclaimed dividend - - - 57,884 - 57,884 57,884

Accrued interest / mark up - - N 6,724 N 6,724 6,724
December 31,2024 1,437,648 496,089 1,933,737 10,533,450 - 10,533,450 12,467,187
December 31,2023 1,492,849 557,866 2,050,715 11,715,591 - 11,715,591 13,766,306
ON BALANCE SHEET GAP
FINANCIAL POSITION GAP
December 31,2024 1,945,588 (496,089) 1,449,499 (1,643,091) 2,980 (1,640,111) (190,612)
December 31,2023 7,526,078 (557,866) 6,968,212 (6,021,014) 2,980 (6,018,034) 950,178
NON FINANCIAL POSITION ITEMS
Letters of credit / guarantee:
December 31,2024 1,967,539
December 31,2023 2,185,593

The carrying value of financial assets and financial liabilities approximate their fair value largely due to the
short-term maturities of these instruments.

Creditrisk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counter parties
failed completely to perform as contracted. The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying
amount of financial assets. Out of total financial assets of Rs. 12,276 million (2023: Rs. 14,716 million), the
financial assets which are subject to credit risk amounted to Rs. 12,133 million (2023: Rs. 14,581 million).

The Company has established an allowance for expected credit losses against trade debts that represent its
estimate of expected losses based on actual credit loss experience in respect of trade debts based on the last 3
years. The allowance determined is then adjusted by multiplying it with the weighted average of the
macroeconomic factors across three scenarios: 'Base’, 'Best, and 'Worst.! This process incorporates
forward-looking information into the expected credit loss model. The macroeconomic factors considered
include forecasts for GDP, unemployment, inflation rates, and exchange rates.



The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and Expected Credit Loss for trade

debts as at reporting date.

Not yet due

Lessthan 3 months

More than 3 months to notlaterthan 6 months

More than 6 monthsto notlaterthan 12 months

More than one year

2024
Gross carrying Expected credit Specificloss Expected credit loss
amount loss allowance rate
¢ (Rupeesin d) >
874,019 1,462 - 0.1%-0.5%
95,449 2,386 - 0.1%-5%
8,045 724 - 0.1%-15%
31,808 - 31,808 100%
17,623 - 17,623 100%
1,026,944 4,572 49,431

Not yet due

Lessthan 3 months

More than 3 months to notlaterthan 6 months

More than 6 monthsto notlaterthan 12 months

More than one year

2023
Grosscarrying Expected credit Specific loss Expected credit loss
amount loss allowance rate
¢ (Rupeesin t d) »
835,916 4,180 - 0.1%-05%
291,881 10,219 - 01%-5%
6,574 985 - 01%-15%
47,194 - 47,194 100%
2,003 - 2,003 100%
1,183,568 15,384 49,197

Deposits have been placed mainly against utility company, shipping guarantees and letters of credit, hence exposed

to no significant credit risk.

Loans and advances to employees are not exposed to any material credit risk.

Other receivables constitute mainly receivables from the Government authorities and related parties, therefore, are

not exposed to any significant credit risk.

The bank balances and short term investments represent low credit risk as they are placed with banks and mutual
funds having good credit ratings assigned by credit rating agencies.

The management does not expect any losses from non-performance by these counterparties.

Management believes that it is not exposed to significant credit risk.
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company’s
approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet
its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking
damage to the Company’s reputation.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in foreign exchange rate, interest rates will effect the Company's income or value
of its holding in financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing returns.

a)

b)

Foreign exchangerrisk

Foreign exchange risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist in foreign currency. As at December 31,
2024, net financial liabilities of Rs. 649 million (2023: Rs. 287 million) were in foreign currency which were exposed
to foreign currency risk.

Foreign currency financial assets are in USD, EUR and GBP Foreign currency liabilities are approx. 25.3% in EUR,
68.9% in USD, 5.0% in JPY & 0.8% in GBP.

As at December 31, 2024, if the Pakistan Rupee had weakened / strengthened by 5% against Euro with all
other variables held constant, profit before tax for the year would have been lower / higher by Rs. 8.2 million
(2023: Rs. 7.6 million), mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses / gains on translation of Euro
denominated net financial liabilities.

As at December 31, 2024, if the Pakistan Rupee had weakened / strengthened by 5% against US Dollar with all
other variables held constant, profit before tax for the year would have been higher / lower by Rs. 22.3 million
(2023: Rs. 3.1 million), mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses / gains on translation of US Dollar
denominated net financial liabilities.

As at December 31, 2024, if the Pakistan Rupee had weakened / strengthened by 5% against JPY with all other
variables held constant, profit before tax for the year would have been lower / higher by Rs. 1.6 million (2023: Rs.
2.0 million), mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses / gains on translation of JPY denominated financial
liabilities.

As at December 31, 2024, if the Pakistan Rupee had weakened / strengthened by 5% against Great Britain Pound
with all other variables held constant, profit before tax for the year would have been lower / higher by Rs. 0.2
million (2023: Rs. 1.6 million), mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses / gains on translation of GBP
denominated net financial liabilities.

The sensitivity of foreign exchange rate looks at the outstanding foreign exchange balances of the Company only
as at the reporting date and assumes this is the position for a full twelve-month period.

Interest raterisk

Interest rate risk arises due to changes in market interest rates that results in fluctuation in fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument. Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose the Company to cash flow interest
rate risk.

At December 31, 2024, the Company had variable interest bearing financial assets of Rs. 3,383.2 million (2023: Rs.
9,018.9 million) and financial liabilities of Rs. 1,933.6 million (2023: Rs 2,050.7 million), and had the interest rate
varied by 200 basis points with all the other variables held constant, profit before tax for the year would have
been approximately Rs. 29.0 million (2023: 139.4 million) lower / higher, mainly as a result of higher / lower interest
expense on floating rate borrowings.



(iv) Fairvalue of financial instruments
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in
the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit

price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

As at December 31, 2024, all financial assets and financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost except for
investment in mutual funds which are carried at their fair values.

The Company classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the
inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

a) Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

b) Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

c) Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).
There were no transfers between level 1, 2 or 3 of the fair value hierarchy during the year.

The valuation techniques used are as follows:

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on Net Asset Values (NAVs) of the units of the
mutual funds and quoted prices for floating rate PIBs at the reporting date. A market is regarded as active when it is
a market in which transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide

pricing information on an on going basis.

The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy of the Company's financial assets (by class) measured at
fair value at December 31, 2024:

2024
. . Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
(Rupeesin thousand)
Short term investments - at
fair value through profit or loss - 6,641,976 - 6,641,976
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41.

42.

43.

44.

CAPITALRISK MANAGEMENT
The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going

concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefit for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The debt-to-capital ratios as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 were as follows:

2024 2023

(Rupees in thousand)
Long term borrowings 496,089 557,866
Cash and bank balances (4,515,320) (9,648,817)
Net cash surplus (4,019,231) (9,090,951)
Total capital 13,380,423 15,659,689
Debt-to-capital ratio 3.71% 3.56%

The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with a view to
maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Note 2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)

Cash and bank balances 16 4,515,320 9,648,817

PROPOSED AND DECLARED DIVIDENDS

At the Board of Directors' meeting held on February 28, 2025, a final dividend of Rs. 600 per share amounting to
Rs. 3,821.9 million in respect of 2024 is proposed (2023: Rs. 178 per share amounting to Rs. 1,133.9 million). This is in
addition to the cumulative interim cash dividend of Rs. 1,277 per share amounting to Rs. 8,134.4 million (2023:
Rs. 251 per share amounting to Rs. 1,598.8 million) declared during the year.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION

These financial statements were authorized for issue on February 28, 2025 by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Amir R.Paracha Asima Haq Muhammad Shahzad
Chief Executive Officer Director Director and Chief Financial Officer



Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the 27" Annual General Meeting of Unilever Pakistan Foods Limited will be held at Overseas
Investors Chamber of Commerce & Industry (OICCI) Chamber of Commerce Building, Talpur Road, Karachi, on Tuesday,
April 22, 2025, at 10:30 a.m. to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the Company’s Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2024, together
with the Reports of the Auditors and Directors thereon.

To approve and declare dividend (2024) on the Ordinary Shares of the Company.

The Directors have recommended a final cash dividend of 6000% (or Rs.600.00) per share on the Ordinary Shares.
Together with the First Interim Dividend of 1430% (or Rs. 143.00) per ordinary share, Second Interim Dividend of 6230%
(or Rs. 623.00) per ordinary share and Third Interim Dividend of 5110% (or Rs. 511.00) per ordinary share, already paid,
the total dividend for 2024 will thus amount to 18770% (or Rs.1877.00) per ordinary share.

To appoint Auditors for the ensuing year, and to fix their remuneration.

Messrs KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible have offered themselves for
re-appointment.

By Order of the Board

Karachi Aman Ghanchi
March 27, 2025 Company Secretary

Notes:

Share Transfer Books will be closed from April 18, 2025 to April 22, 2025 (both days inclusive) when no transfer of
shares will be accepted for registration. Transfers in good order, received at the office of Company’s Share Registrar
M/s CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block “B”, S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400
by the close of the Business on April 17, 2025 will be treated in time for the purpose of payment of Final Dividend to the
transferees and for ascertaining the entitlement of Shareholders for attending the Annual General Meeting.

Circulation of Annual Report through QR Code and weblink

In accordance with Section 223 of the Companies Act, 2017 and pursuant to SECP's SRO 389(1)/2023 dated 21t March
2023, the Company has obtained shareholders' approval in the 26" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company
held on 16% April 2024 to circulate the Annual Report of the Company to Members through QR enabled Code and
Weblink. The Annual Report is available through Code annexed to the notice and also on the Weblink:
www.unilever.pk

AllMembers / Shareholders are entitled to attend and vote at the meeting. AMember may appoint a proxy who need not
be a Member of the Company.

The Individuals (Member/Proxy), shall authenticate his / her identity by showing his / her original valid Computerized
National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at the time of attending the Meeting.

Duly completed instrument of proxy, and the other authority under which it is signed, or a notarially certified copy
thereof, must be lodged with the Company Secretary at the Company’s Registered Office (1st Floor, Avari Plaza,
Fatima Jinnah Road, Karachi) at least 48 hours before the time of the meeting.

CDC Account Holders will further have to follow the under-mentioned guidelines as laid down by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan:

For Attending the Meeting:

In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person whose securities are in group
account and their registration details are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall authenticate his / her identity by
showing his / her original valid Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at the time of
attending the meeting.

In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature of the
nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of the meeting.
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For Appointing Proxies:

In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities are in group
account and their registration details are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall submit the proxy form accordingly.

The proxy form shall be withessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on the form.
Attested copies of valid CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form.
The proxy shall produce his / her original valid CNIC or original passport at the time of meeting.

In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature and
attested copy of valid CNIC of the person nominated to represent and vote on behalf of the corporate entity, shall be
submitted along with proxy form to the Company.

In accordance with the directives of the SECP, the dividends of shareholders whose CNIC copies have not been
received by the Company shall not be electronically credited until receipt thereof. Therefore, the individual
shareholders who have not submitted their CNIC copies are requested to send the same at the earliest to the share
registrar of the Company. Corporate entities are requested to provide their NTN. While providing their CNIC/NTN,
shareholders must quote their respective folio number

(i) The Government of Pakistan through Finance Act, 2014 has made certain amendments in Section 150 of the
Income Tax Ordinance 2001 whereby different rates are prescribed for deduction of withholding tax on the amount
of dividend paid by the Companies. Now these rates as per the Finance Act -2024 are as under:

(a) For Filers of Income Tax Return 15%
(b) For Non-Filers of Income Tax Return 30%

To enable the Company to make tax deduction on the amount of cash dividend @ 15% instead of 30% all the
shareholders whose names are not entered into the Active Tax-payers List (ATL) provided on the website of FBR,
despite the fact that they are filers, are advised to make sure that their names are entered into ATL before the start
of book closure date i.e. April 18, 2025 for entitlement to final dividend to be paid on May 06, 2025 otherwise tax on
their cash dividend will be deducted @ 30% instead of 15%.

(ii) For any query/problem/information, the investor may contact the Share Registrar: The Manager, M/s CDC Share
Registrar Services Limited, telephone number: 0800 - 23275 (Toll Free), e-mail address: info@cdcpak.com and /or
the Company: Mr. Hussain Ahmed, telephone number: +92-21-35681008 e-mail address:
corporate.secretarial@unilever.com

(iii) The corporate shareholders having CDC accounts are required to have their National Tax Number (NTN) updated with
their respective participants, whereas corporate physical shareholder should send a copy of their NTN certificate to
the Company or it's Share Registrar M/s CDC Share Registrar Services Limited. The Shareholders while sending NTN or
NTN certificates, as the case may be, must quote Company name and their respective folio numbers.

According to clarification received from Federal Board of Revenue (FBR), withholding tax will be determined separately on
‘Filer/Non-Filer’ status of Principal Shareholder as well as Joint Holder(s) based on their shareholding proportions, in case of

joint holding / joint account. In this regard, all shareholders who hold shares with joint shareholders, are requested to

provide shareholding proportions of Principal Shareholder and Joint Holder(s) in respect of shares held by them, to
Company’s Share Registrar, M/s CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block “B”, SSM.C.H.S., Main
Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400, in writing as follows:

Principal Shareholder Joint Shareholder
Name of Folio/CDS Total Name and Shareholding Name and Shareholding
Company Account# Shares CNIC# Proportion CNIC# Proportion
(No. of Shares) (No. of Shares)

Otherwise it will be assumed that the shares are equally held by Principal Shareholder and Joint -Holder(s).



10.

11.

12.

13.

Under the provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, it is mandatory for a listed Company to pay cash
dividend to its shareholders only through electronic mode directly into bank account designated by the entitled
shareholders. In order to receive dividends directly into their bank account, shareholders are requested to fill in
Dividend Mandate Shareholders having physical holding should submit the prescribed Dividend Mandate Form, to
the Company’s Share Registrar. The Shareholders who hold shares with participants / stock brokers or with Central
Depository Company may approadch to submit the prescribed Dividend Mandate details to their participants / stock
broker or to CDC for this option, with a copy of the Dividend Mandate Form to Share Registrar of the Company. The
Dividend Mandate Form is available in the Annual Report and also uploaded on our Company’'s website.

Pursuant to Section 134(2) and Section 132(2) of the Companies Act, 2017, members can also avail video conference
facility at Lahore, subject to the following conditions.

The video conferencing facility will be provided only if the Company receives consent from members holding in
aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing at Lahore, to participate in the meeting through video conference at
least 7 days prior to the date of general meeting.

The Company will intimate to the members regarding venue of video conference facility 5 days before the date of
general meeting along with complete information necessary to enable them to access such facility.

In this regard, members who wish to participate through video conference facility at Lahore should send a duly signed
request as follows:

1/ We, S/o, D/o, W/o being a member of Unilever Pakistan
Foods Limited, holder of Ordinary Share(s) as per Register Folio No. hereby opt for video
conferencing facility at (Name of City).

Signature of Member

Any change of address of Members should be immediately notified to the Company’s Share Registrars, M/s CDC Share
Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block “B”, S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi -74400.

Pursuant to the section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 listed companies are required to replace its physical shares with
book-entry form within the stipulated period notified by the SECP.

The Shareholders who hold physical shares are encouraged to open CDC sub- account with any of the brokers or
Investor Account directly with CDC to place their physical shares into scrip less form.

Additional Information for Shareholders:

Unclaimed / Unpaid Cash Dividend and Share Certificates: In compliance with Section 244 of the Act, the Company
has already requested through individual letters to shareholders and also through newspaper to collect their
unclaimed shares / unpaid cash dividend, if any. Shareholders are once again requested to lodge a claim for
unclaimed shares / unpaid cash dividends with the Company's Share Registrar i.e. CDC Share Registrar Services
Limited.
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Form of Proxy

The Secretary

Unilever Pakistan Foods Limited
Avari Plaza, Fatima Jinnah Road
Karachi-75530, Pakistan.

1/We son/daughter/wife of shareholder of Unilever
Pakistan Foods Limited, holding ordinary shares hereby appoint Mr./Ms.
having CNIC No. who is
my [state relationship (if any) with the proxy; required by Government
regulations] and the son/daughter/wife of , (holding
ordinary shares in the Company under Folio No. ) [required by Government; delete if proxy is
not the Company’s shareholder] as my / our proxy, to attend and vote for me / us and on my / our behalf at the
27th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on April 22, 2025 and / or any adjournment thereof.

Signed this day of 2025.
Witness 1:
Signature:
N . (Signature should agree with the specimen
ame: signature registered with the Company)
CNIC #: .
Sign across Rs. 5/-
Address : Revenue Stamp
Witness 2: Signature of Member(s)
Signature: Shareholder’s Folio No.:
Name: and / or CDC Participant I.D. No.:
CNIC #: and Sub- Account No.:
Address: Shareholder’'s CNIC #:

Email Address of Proxy:

Contact No. of Proxy:

Note:

1. The Member is requested to:
(a) affix Revenue Stamp of Rs. 5/- at the place indicated above.
(b) sign across the Revenue Stamp in the same style of signature as is registered with the Company.
(c) write down his/her/their Folio Number.
(d) attach an attested photocopy of their valid Computerised National Identity Card / Passport / Board
Resolution and the copy of valid CNIC of the proxy, with this proxy form before submission.

2. In order to be valid, this Proxy must be received at the Registered Office of the Company at least 48 hours
before the time fixed for the Meeting, duly completed in all respects.

3. Detailed procedure is given in the Notes to the Notice of AGM.
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Bank Account Details of Shareholder for Payment of Cash Dividend (Dividend Mandate Form)
(Mandatory Requirement as per the Companies Act, 2017)

Company:

Folio No./CDS Account No.

Name of Shareholder:

Father’s / Husband's Name:

Address:

CNIC#:

Cell#:

Landline #:

Email:

It is requested that all my cash dividend amounts declared by the Company, may be
credited into the following bank account:

International Bank Account Number (IBAN) — Mandatory:

P K

Bank’s Name
Branch Name
Branch Address

It is stated that the above-mentioned information is correct and that | will intimate the changes in
the above-mentioned information to the company and the concerned Share Registrar as soon as
these occur.

Name of Shareholder (s)
Encl: Photocopy of CNIC

Note:
This form duly filled and signed along with legible photocopy of valid Computerised National Identity Card (CNIC) will
be sent to the M/s CDC Share Registrar Services Limited ,CDC House, 99-B, Block ‘B’, S.M.C.H.S., Main
Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400, Pakistan.
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Reserves Total
Share
Capital Capital Revenue Sub Total
Issued, Share Special General Un-appropriated
subscribedand Premium Profit
paid up capital
< (Rupees in thousand) >
Balance as at January 1, 2024 63,699 1,296,499 628 138 14,298,725 15,595,990 15,659,689
Transactions with owners of the Company - Distribution
d pany Total
Final dividend for the year ended
December 31, 2023 @ Rs. 178 per share - - - - (1,133,851) (1,133,851) (1,133,851)
First Interim dividend for the year ended
December 31, 2024 @ Rs. 143 per share - - - - (910,903) (910,903) (910,903)
Second Interim dividend for the year ended
December 31, 2024 @ Rs. 623 per share - - - - (3,968,479) (3,968,479) (3,968,479)
Third Interim dividend for the year ended
December 31,2024 @ Rs.511 per share ) . ) (3.255,044) (3.255,044) (3.255,044)
- - - (9,268,277) (9,268,277) (9,268,277)
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year ended
December 31, 2024 - - - - 6,974,631 6,974,631 6,974,631
Other comprehensive income for the year
ended December 31, 2024 N N N 14,380 14,380 14,380
- - - 6,989,011 6,989,011 6,989,011
Balance as at December 31,2024 63,699 1,296,499 628 138 12,019,459 13,316,724 13,380,423
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For further information about
Unilever, please visit our website
www.unilever.pk
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